
 
Agenda 

College Station City Council 
Workshop Meeting 

Monday, November 20, 2006 3:00 PM 
City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue 

College Station, Texas 
 
1. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on items listed on the consent 

agenda.  
 
2. Presentation, possible action and discussion on the tax ceiling for seniors and the 

disabled. 
 

3. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding possible Alternative 
Revenue Sources for the City of College Station. 

 
4. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding possible implementation of 

Red Light Camera System for the City of College Station.  
 

5. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an update on the 
comprehensive plan process.  

 
6. Presentation, possible action, and discussion on future agenda items: A Council 

Member may inquire about a subject for which notice has not been given.  A 
statement of specific factual information or the recitation of existing policy may 
be given.  Any deliberation shall be limited to a proposal to place the subject on 
an agenda for a subsequent meeting. 

 
7. Council Calendar 
 
Nov. 21 Council Transportation Committee 4:30 pm Administrative Conference 

Room 
Nov. 21 Quarterly Membership Breakfast “Taste of the Brazos Valley” - 6:30 am 

to 8:00 am 
Nov. 23-24  City Offices Closed for Thanksgiving Holiday 

Nov. 27    Cemetery Master Plan Development Meeting Public hearing, 7:00 pm  
     Council Chambers  
Nov. 29 State of the Research Valley Luncheon - Annenberg Presidential 

Conference Center - Presidential Dining 1011C 

1



Dec.1 Christmas in the Park, 5:45 pm  Central Park  
Dec. 4 Citizens Congress, Hilton  6:00 pm  
Dec. 6 – 9    NLC 83rd Congress of Cities Conference – Reno, NV. 
Dec. 14 Council Workshop and Regular Meeting - 3:00 p.m. 
Dec. 18    Intergovernmental Committee Meeting - Noon - City of College Station 
Dec. 19 Council Transportation Committee 4:30 p.m. Administrative Conference  
Dec. 25 City Offices Closed 
Dec. 26 City Offices Closed 
Feb 12-Mar 12 Filing Period for Place on Ballot for City Council Election 
 
8. Discussion, review and possible action regarding the following meetings:  Brazos 

County Health Dept., Brazos Valley Council of Governments, Cemetery 
Committee, City Center, CSISD/City Joint Meeting, Design Review Board, 
Fraternal Partnership, Historic Preservation Committee, Interfaith Dialogue 
Association, Intergovernmental Committee and School District, Joint Relief 
Funding Review Committee, Library Committee, Making Cities Livable 
Conference,  Metropolitan Planning Organization, Outside Agency Funding 
Review, Parks and Recreation Board, Planning and Zoning Commission, Sister 
City Association, TAMU Student Senate,  Research Valley Partnership, Regional 
Transportation Committee for Council of Governments, Transportation 
Committee, Wolf Pen Creek Oversight Committee, Wolf Pen Creek TIF Board, 
Zoning Board of Adjustments, (see attached posted notices for subject matters). 

 
9. Executive Session will immediately follow the workshop meeting in the 

Administrative Conference Room. 
 
Consultation with Attorney {Gov’t Code Section 551.071}; possible action  The City 
Council may seek advice from its attorney regarding a pending and contemplated 
litigation subject or settlement offer or attorney-client privileged information.  
Litigation is an ongoing process and questions may arise as to a litigation tactic or 
settlement offer, which needs to be discussed with the City Council.  Upon occasion 
the City Council may need information from its attorney as to the status of a pending 
or contemplated litigation subject or settlement offer or attorney-client privileged 
information.  After executive session discussion, any final action or vote taken will be 
in public.  The following subject(s) may be discussed: 

 
a. TCEQ Docket No. 2002-1147-UCR, Applications of Brushy Water Supply and 

College Station (Westside/Highway 60) 
b. TCEQ Docket No. 2003-0544MWD, Application of Nantucket, Ltd. 
c. TXU Lone Star Gas Rate Request. 
d. Cause No. 03-002098-CV-85, Brazos County, College Station v. Wellborn 

Special Utility District 
e. College Station v. U.S. Dept. of Agriculture, etc., and Wellborn Special Utility 

District 
f. Civil Action No. H-04-3876, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, 

Houston Division, JK Development v. College Station 

2



g. GUD No. 9530 – Gas Cost Prudence Review, Atmos Energy Corporation 
h. GUD No. 9560 – Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program (GRIP) rate increases, 

Atmos Energy Corporation  
i. Cause No. GN-502012, Travis County, TMPA v. PUC (College Station filed 

Intervention 7/6/05) 
j. Cause No. 06-000703-CV-85, Patricia Moore, et al. v. Ross Stores, Inc., City of 

College Station, et al. 
k. Possible settlement water CCN with Wellborn 
l. Possible settlement of sewer CCN issue 
m. Legal aspects of Lease Agreements for No. 4 Water Well and possible purchase 

of or lease of another water site from City of Bryan 
n. C.C.N. Issue for Sewer & Water regarding possible overlaps by City of College 

Station and City of Bryan 
o.   Cause No. 484-CC; City of College Station v. Canyon Creek Partners, Ltd., et al; 

in the County Court at Law No. 2 of Brazos County, Texas 
 
Economic Incentive Negotiations {Gov’t Code Section 551.087}; possible action 
The City Council may deliberate on commercial or financial information that the City 
Council has received from a business prospect that the City Council seeks to have 
locate, stay or expand in or near the city with which the City Council in conducting 
economic development negotiations may deliberate on an offer of financial or other 
incentives for a business prospect.  After executive session discussion, any final 
action or vote taken will be in public.  The following subject(s) may be discussed: 
 
a.. Data Center 
b.   Large Sporting Outlet 
 
 
10. Final Action on executive session, if necessary. 
 
11. Adjourn. 

 
 

APPROVED: 
 

__

E-Signed by Glenn Brown
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

_____________________________ 
City Manager  

 
Notice is hereby given that a Workshop Meeting of the City Council of the City of 
College Station, Texas will be held on the November 20, 2006 at 3:00 p.m. at the City 
Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas.  The following 
subjects will be discussed, to wit:  See Agenda 
Posted this 17th day of November, at 2:00 p.m. 
 

3



E-Signed by Connie Hooks
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

____________________________ 
City Secretary 

 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing 
Body of the City of College Station, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and 
that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 1101 
Texas Avenue, in College Station, Texas, and the City’s website, www.cstx.gov .  The 
Agenda and Notice are readily accessible to the general public at all times.  Said Notice 
and Agenda were posted on November 17, 2006 at 2:00 p.m. and remained so posted 
continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official board at the College Station City Hall 
on the following date and time:  _______________________ by 
___________________________. 
 
    Dated this _____day of _______________, 2006. 
    CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS 

By____________________________________ 
 

Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the ______day of _________________, 
___________________Notary Public – Brazos County, Texas   
My commission expires:_________ 
This building is wheelchair accessible.  Handicap parking spaces are available.  Any 
request for sign interpretive service must be made 48 hours before the meeting.  To make 
arrangements call (979) 764-3517 or (TDD) 1-800-735-2989.  Agendas may be viewed 
on www.cstx.gov.  Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Access Channel 19. 

4

http://www.cstx.gov
http://www.cstx.gov


Agenda 
College Station City Council 

Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 20, 2006 at 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall Council Chamber, 1101 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Texas 

 
 
12. Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, Consider absence requests 
 

Hear Visitors:  Any citizen may address the City Council on any item which does 
not appear on the posted Agenda.  Registration forms are available in the lobby 
and at the desk of the City Secretary.  This form should be completed and 
delivered to the City Secretary by 6:45 p.m.  Please limit remarks to three 
minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal that you have 
thirty seconds remaining so that you may conclude your remarks.  The City 
Council will receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the 
issue on a future agenda.  Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the 
City Manager. 
 

Consent Agenda 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a consent or regular agenda item not 
posted as a public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s 
reading of the agenda item.  Registration forms are available in the lobby and at the desk 
of the City Secretary.  The Mayor will recognize individuals who wish to come forward 
to speak for or against the item.  The speaker will please state their name and address for 
the record and provided three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to 
signal thirty seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks.     
 
 

Vision Statement I - Core Services   
Professionals providing world-class customer focused services at a competitive cost 

through innovation and planning. 
 
 
13.1 Presentation, possible action and discussion on the 2006 Gainsharing Distribution. 
 
13.2 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the approval of a 

resolution establishing a joint Bryan/College Station Youth Commission. 
 
13.3 Presentation, possible action and discussion on approving the budget of the 

Memorial for all Veterans of the Brazos Valley; and presentation, possible action 
and discussion on a funding agreement between the City of College Station and 
the Memorial for all Veterans of the Brazos Valley for FY07 in the amount of 
$50,000. 

 

5



13.4 Presentation, possible action and discussion to authorize the expenditures for the 
Brazos County Appraisal District in the amount of $185,217 pursuant to the 
Property Tax Code 6.06D. 

 
13.5 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution determining 

the public necessity to acquire easement interests for the Church Avenue Phase II 
Project. 

 
13.6 Presentation, possible action, and discussion to approve a Needs Resolution for 

Public Access Easements for the College Main Sidewalks Project. The easements 
are along the east and west side of College Main between Cross and Cherry 
Streets. 

 
13.7 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a resolution 

awarding Bid No 06-138 to Gulf States Inc for construction of Spring Creek 
Substation in the amount of $3,642, 800. 

 
13.8 Presentation, possible action and discussion on a Change Order to Contract #05-

019 for Electric System Right-of-Way Clearing and Tree Trimming Contract with 
Asplundh Tree Expert Company in the amount of $75,114.75. 

 
13.9 Presentation, possible action and discussion on renewal of Bid #05-41, Contract 

#05-019 for Electric System Right-of-Way Clearing and Tree Trimming Contract 
award to Asplundh Tree Expert Company for $384,900.00 for the third year.  

 
13.10 Presentation, possible action, and discussion on the first reading of an ordinance 

granting a non-exclusive medical waste hauling franchise agreement to Tejas 
Medical Waste. 

 
13.11 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the ratification of the 

Historic Preservation Committee’s Rules of Procedure. 
 
13.12 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of an amendment 

to the Update and Support Agreement with Azteca Systems, Inc. approved by 
Council on December 9, 1999 which amends the covered products. 

 
13.13 Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approving minutes for the 

November 9, 2006 Council Workshop and Regular Meeting. 
 
 
Regular Agenda 
 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a regular agenda item not posted 
as a public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s reading of 
the agenda item.  The Mayor will recognize you to come forward to speak for or against 
the item.  The speaker will state their name and address for the record and allowed three 

6



minutes. A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty seconds remaining 
so that the speaker may conclude your remarks. 
  
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on an item posted as a public hearing 
shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s announcement to open the 
public hearing.   The Mayor will recognize individuals who wish to come forward to 
speak for or against the item.  The speaker will state their name and address for the record 
and allowed three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty 
seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks.    After a public 
hearing is closed, there shall be no additional public comments.  If Council needs 
additional information from the general public, some limited comments may be allowed 
at the discretion of the Mayor.    
 
If an individual does not wish to address the City Council, but still wishes to be recorded 
in the official minutes as being in support or opposition to an agenda item, the individual 
may complete the registration form provided in the lobby by providing the name, address, 
and comments about a city related subject.  These comments will be referred to the City 
Council and City Manager.   
 
 

Vision Statement III – Planning and Development 
Professionals who plan and develop a sustainable community balancing neighborhood 

and community interests. 
 
14.1 Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 

rezoning approximately 94 acres, located on the south side of Bird Pond Road 
north-east of Rock Prairie Road, from A-O (Agricultural Open) to A-OR (Rural 
Residential). 

 
14.2 Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and consideration of an ordinance 

authorizing a Conditional Use Permit for Winestyles Wine & Gifts located at 
1741 University Drive East.       

 
14.3 Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 

rezoning approximately 44 acres, located at 1300 Harvey Mitchell Parkway 
South, from A-O (Agricultural Open) and R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to a 
combination of A-O (Agricultural Open) and R-4 (Multi-Family). 

 
14.4 Public hearing, presentation, possible action and discussion of an ordinance 

amending City of College Station Code of Ordinances Chapter 13:  Flood Hazard 
Protection, Section 5G:  Special Provisions for Floodways.  

 
Vision Statement I - Core Services   

Professionals providing world-class customer focused services at a competitive cost 
through innovation and planning. 

 

7



 
14.5 Presentation, possible action and discussion on the tax ceiling for seniors and the 

disabled. 
 

15. The City Council may convene the executive session following the regular 
meeting to discuss matters posted on the executive session agenda for 
November 20, 2006. 

 
16. Final action on executive session, if necessary. 
 
17. Adjourn. 
 
If litigation issues arise to the posted subject matter of these Council Meetings an 
executive session will be held. 
 
APPROVED: 
 

___

E-Signed by Glenn Brown
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

_____________________________ 
City Manager  
 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas will be held on the Monday, November 20, 2006 at 7:00 p.m. at the City 
Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas.  The following 
subjects will be discussed, to wit:  See Agenda. 
 
Posted this the 17th   day of November, 2006 at 2:00 p.m. 
 

E-Signed by Connie Hooks
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

________________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing 
Body of the City of College Station, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and 
that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 1101 
Texas Avenue, in College Station, Texas, and the City’s website, www.cstx.gov .  The 
Agenda and Notice are readily accessible to the general public at all times.  Said Notice 
and Agenda were posted on November 17, 2006 at 2:00 p.m. and remained so posted 
continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the College Station 
City Hall on the following date and time:  __________________________ by 
________________________. 
 

8

http://www.cstx.gov


    Dated this _____day of ________________, 2006. 
    By______________________________________ 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the _____day of ________________, 2006. 
 
______________________________   
Notary Public – Brazos County, Texas  My commission expires: ___________ 
 
The building is wheelchair accessible.  Handicap parking spaces are available.  Any 
request for sign interpretive service must be made 48 hours before the meeting.  To make 
arrangements call (979) 764-3517 or (TDD) 1-800-735-2989.  Agendas may be viewed 
on www.cstx.gov .  Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Access Channel 19. 
 
 
 
 

9

http://www.cstx.gov


 

November 20, 2006 
Workshop Agenda Item 

Senior and Disabled Tax Ceiling 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on the tax ceiling for seniors 
and the disabled. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends Council provide direction on the tax ceiling for 
seniors and the disabled.   
 
Summary:  In 2003, a change to the State of Texas Tax Code was enacted that allows a 
ceiling to be placed on the property taxes paid by senior and disabled citizens. The code was 
amended with three methods by which the senior and disabled tax ceiling can be enacted  
 

1. The governing body of the taxing unit can vote to enact the tax ceiling. 
2. The governing body of the taxing unit can vote to place the tax ceiling issue on the 

ballot of an upcoming uniform election. 
3. Citizens within the taxing unit can file a petition signed by 5% of the registered 

voters in the jurisdiction and have the tax ceiling issue placed on the ballot of an 
upcoming election. 

 
If Council chooses to set 2006 as the base year for calculating the tax ceiling, an item can 
be placed on the December 14, 2006 agenda to enact the senior and disabled tax ceiling. 
 
Staff can prepare a resolution, on which Council must vote, to include the senior and 
disabled tax ceiling issue on the ballot of an upcoming uniform election. The next uniform 
election is May 12, 2007.  
 
A citizen petition to include the senior and disabled tax ceiling issue on an upcoming uniform 
election could be received. To include the tax ceiling issue on the May 12, 2007 ballot, the 
petition must be received and verified by the City Secretary no later than February 15, 
2007. If these criteria are not met, the next uniform election on which the senior and 
disabled tax ceiling could be voted would be November 6, 2007. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  Staff has completed a ten year estimate on the impact of 
enacting a tax ceiling for seniors and the disabled. The revenues that would be lost to the 
tax ceiling over a ten year period are estimated to be $3.2 million ($1.4 million for 
Operations and Maintenance and $1.8 million for Debt Service). The cumulative average 
amount lost to the tax ceiling each year would be $317,000 ($138,000 for Operations and 
Maintenance and $179,000 for Debt Service). These estimates assume that there are no 
major changes in the number of citizens who currently claim a senior or disabled exemption.  
If the senior and disabled tax ceiling were enacted and an individuals tax bill was $500; the 
taxes paid on the home would not exceed the $500 unless substantial improvements were 
made to the property regardless of how much the property may increase in value. 
 
Attachments: 
Senior Tax Ceiling Information 
Ten Year forecast of Ad Valorem Revenues 
 

10



Senior Tax Ceiling Information 
House Bill 136 allows the City to put a ceiling on the tax bill of the primary residence of elderly 
and disabled persons. The law provides that property taxes will not go up for that residence once 
a homeowner is registered as over 65 years of age or as disabled. Property improvements, other 
than general maintenance, can increase the amount of the tax bill. 

Enacting a property tax ceiling for the seniors and the disabled 
1. The tax ceiling can be enacted by ordinance, without a petition or special election. 

2. Voters can petition for an election to adopt the tax ceiling with the signatures of five percent 
of the registered voters in the City. 

The tax ceiling is at the option of City Council, except if an election is required by a voter petition 
(TEX. CONST. art. VIII, § 1-b (h)). 

Special Notes: 

- Once the property tax ceiling is adopted it cannot be revoked. 

- Governor Rick Perry issued an Executive Order RP60 on August 21, 2006 to establish a 
Texas Task Force on Appraisal Reform to review property appraisal caps. The Task 
Force will submit a full report and recommendations to the governor prior to convening 
of the 80th Texas Legislature on January 9, 2007. Implementation of property appraisal 
cap legislation by the 80th Texas Legislature could impact the ability of local 
governments to generate revenues to fund public services. 

When a senior tax ceiling would go in effect if adopted by Council 
The calendar year in which the property tax ceiling is adopted by the City becomes the “base” 
year. The total tax bill of an eligible homeowner cannot increase beyond the amount they paid in 
the base year after the ceiling is adopted, except for the two conditions listed below:  

1. There are improvements to the property beyond normal maintenance and upkeep, said 
improvements will be subject to subsequent tax increases; or 

2. The property erroneously received an exemption to which it was not entitled in a prior year. 

The benefit of the tax ceiling for eligible homeowners does not accrue until the tax year after the 
calendar year in which the ceiling is enacted (i.e. if adopted in 2006, the baseline (ceiling), will be 
the 2006 tax levy, which will be assessed in 2007 and future years.) 

Existing homestead exemption and the tax ceiling 
The City of College Station currently has a $30,000 homestead exemptions for senior citizens. If 
the city adopted a tax ceiling, the amount of taxes paid on the homestead, reduced by the 
homestead exemption amount, would remain the baseline amount even if the optional homestead 
exemption were cancelled or reduced in the future. 

Transferability/Portability 
Transferability by Jurisdiction (transfer from city to city): the tax ceiling is not transferable 
from city to city.  

11



Transferability to Surviving Spouse: the tax ceiling is transferable to a surviving spouse who is 
disabled or at least 55 years of age. 

Portability (transfer from home to home): the tax ceiling transfers to a new home purchased 
within the same jurisdiction, but the taxes owed would increase if the value of the new homestead 
is greater than the old homestead. The new taxable value would increase based on a ratio between 
the relative value of the old and new homesteads. Id. at 11.261g. (See exhibit#1 for example) 

Current Optional Exemptions for City Residents: 
The following exemptions are set for the disabled and individuals over 65 years of age: 

- $75,000 exemption from Brazos County, as well as a tax ceiling 

- $30,000 exemption from CSISD  

- $30,000 exemption from City of College Station 

Options for Council to Consider: 
Option 1:  Continue with the city’s $30,000 senior and disabled exemption without 

implementing the senior and disabled tax ceiling. 

Option 2:  Adopt the tax ceiling for a specific year (current year or next year) recognizing the 
revenue loss will increase with each additional year.  

Option 3:  Adopt a resolution to put on the next scheduled uniform election ballot (May 12 or 
November 6). 

Option 4:  Wait for petition and put on the next scheduled uniform election ballot. 

12



Exhibit 1 
Portability Example 
For city property tax purposes, persons who qualify for an over 65 exemption or a disabled 
person exemption on their homestead currently establish a “ceiling” on their tax amount when 
they apply and qualify for the exemption. The current City of College Station exemption for 
citizens over 65 is $30,000 per homestead. 

 Tax Ceiling Year  Final Year at Homestead 

Homestead Value  $160,000   $173,000 

Over/65 Exemption  -$  30,000   -$  30,000 

Taxable Value  $ 130,000   $143,000 

Tax Ceiling amount .4394/$100 valuation = $1,300*.4394 = $571 (tax ceiling amount) 

Tax amount without enacting a tax ceiling = $1,430*.4394 = $628 tax amount 

As long as the homeowner continues to qualify for the exemption, their tax bill amount will not 
exceed $571. The appraised value of the home can increase, and the tax rate can increase, but the 
actual tax bill paid will not exceed $571 (unless substantial homestead improvements are made). 

Transferring the homeowner’s tax ceiling to a different home gives the same tax benefit to the 
homeowner, but not the same tax ceiling. A tax ceiling on a new home would be calculated to 
give the homeowner the same percentage of taxes paid as the original home’s tax ceiling. 

For example, a qualified homeowner had a city tax ceiling of $571, but would pay $628 without a 
city tax ceiling on the homestead. The percentage paid by the homeowner was 91% ($571 divided 
by $628, times 100). If the homeowner moved to a new home in that city, the owner will pay 91% 
of the city tax bill on the new home. If the new home’s city taxes were $1,000, then the owner 
would have a tax ceiling of $910 ($1,000 times 91%). 

13



252,688,454       Senior Taxable Value
3,802,482,092    All Other Taxable Value
4,055,170,546 Taxable value (all property)

FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17
General Fund O&M Rate 0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                
Debt Service Rate 0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                
Total Rate 0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                

Ad Valorem Collections with Senior Ceiling
FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17

Growth Factor 6% 5% 5% 4% 4% 4% 4% 3% 3% 3%
Senior Value 252,688,454       267,849,761       281,242,249       295,304,362       307,116,536       319,401,198       332,177,246       345,464,335       355,828,265       366,503,113       377,498,207       
All Other 3,802,482,092    4,030,631,018    4,232,162,568    4,443,770,697    4,621,521,525    4,806,382,386    4,998,637,681    5,198,583,188    5,354,540,684    5,515,176,905    5,680,632,212    

Total Taxable Value 3,802,482,092    4,030,631,018    4,232,162,568    4,443,770,697    4,621,521,525    4,806,382,386    4,998,637,681    5,198,583,188    5,354,540,684    5,515,176,905    5,680,632,212    

Senior Taxes
O&M Taxes 482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              
Debt Service 627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              

Senior Taxes 1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           

All Other
O&M Taxes 7,262,741           7,698,505           8,083,431           8,487,602           8,827,106           9,180,190           9,547,398           9,929,294           10,227,173         10,533,988         10,850,008         
Debt Service 9,445,366           10,012,087         10,512,692         11,038,326         11,479,859         11,939,054         12,416,616         12,913,281         13,300,679         13,699,699         14,110,690         

All Other 16,708,106         17,710,593         18,596,122         19,525,928         20,306,966         21,119,244         21,964,014         22,842,575         23,527,852         24,233,687         24,960,698         

Total Taxes (senior ceiling enacted) 17,818,419$       18,820,906$       19,706,435$       20,636,242$       21,417,279$       22,229,557$       23,074,327$       23,952,888$       24,638,165$       25,344,000$       26,071,011$       

Ad Valorem Collections with No Senior Ceiling
FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17

Growth Factor 6% 5% 5% 4% 4% 4% 4% 3% 3% 3%
Senior Value 252,688,454       267,849,761       281,242,249       295,304,362       307,116,536       319,401,198       332,177,246       345,464,335       355,828,265       366,503,113       377,498,207       
All Other 3,802,482,092    4,030,631,018    4,232,162,568    4,443,770,697    4,621,521,525    4,806,382,386    4,998,637,681    5,198,583,188    5,354,540,684    5,515,176,905    5,680,632,212    

Total Taxable Value 3,802,482,092    4,030,631,018    4,232,162,568    4,443,770,697    4,621,521,525    4,806,382,386    4,998,637,681    5,198,583,188    5,354,540,684    5,515,176,905    5,680,632,212    

Senior Taxes
O&M Taxes 482,635              511,593              537,173              564,031              586,593              610,056              634,459              659,837              679,632              700,021              721,022              
Debt Service 627,678              665,339              698,606              733,536              762,877              793,393              825,128              858,133              883,877              910,394              937,706              

Senior Taxes 1,110,313           1,176,932           1,235,778           1,297,567           1,349,470           1,403,449           1,459,587           1,517,970           1,563,509           1,610,415           1,658,727           

All Other
O&M Taxes 7,262,741           7,698,505           8,083,431           8,487,602           8,827,106           9,180,190           9,547,398           9,929,294           10,227,173         10,533,988         10,850,008         
Debt Service 9,445,366           10,012,087         10,512,692         11,038,326         11,479,859         11,939,054         12,416,616         12,913,281         13,300,679         13,699,699         14,110,690         

All Other 16,708,106         17,710,593         18,596,122         19,525,928         20,306,966         21,119,244         21,964,014         22,842,575         23,527,852         24,233,687         24,960,698         

Total Taxes (no senior ceiling) 17,818,419$       18,887,525$       19,831,901$       20,823,496$       21,656,436$       22,522,693$       23,423,601$       24,360,545$       25,091,361$       25,844,102$       26,619,425$       

Average Amt Total Amt Lost
Financial Impact FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 Lost per Year Over 10 years
Estimated O&M Lost to Exemption -                         (28,958)               (54,538)               (81,396)               (103,958)             (127,421)             (151,824)             (177,202)             (196,997)             (217,386)             (238,387)             (137,807)         (1,378,066)        
Estimated Debt Service Lost to Exemption -                         (37,661)               (70,928)               (105,858)             (135,199)             (165,714)             (197,450)             (230,455)             (256,199)             (282,716)             (310,027)             (179,221)         (1,792,208)        

Total Estimated Loss to Exemption -$                       (66,619)$             (125,465)$           (187,254)$           (239,157)$           (293,136)$           (349,274)$           (407,657)$           (453,196)$           (500,102)$           (548,414)$           (317,027)$       (3,487,302)$      

14



Fiscal 
Year

General 
Fund

Debt 
Service Total % Change

FY08 (28,958)$        (37,661)$        (66,619)$        
FY09 (54,538)          (70,928)          (125,465)        88%
FY10 (81,396)          (105,858)        (187,254)        49%
FY11 (103,958)        (135,199)        (239,157)        28%
FY12 (127,421)        (165,714)        (293,136)        23%
FY13 (151,824)        (197,450)        (349,274)        19%
FY14 (177,202)        (230,455)        (407,657)        17%
FY15 (196,997)        (256,199)        (453,196)        11%
FY16 (217,386)        (282,716)        (500,102)        10%
FY17 (238,387)        (310,027)        (548,414)        10%

(1,378,066)$   (1,792,208)$   (3,170,274)$   

15



November 20, 2006  
Workshop Agenda  

Alternative Revenue Sources  
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Terry L. Childers, Deputy City Manager                          
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding possible 
Alternative Revenue Sources for the City of College Station.   
 
Recommendation(s): Council consideration of various revenue options 
presented and provide direction to City Manager on potential sources of alternative 
revenues desired by Council.  
 
Summary: The City Council set as one of its priorities during the June 2006 Council 
Retreat, the exploration and evaluation of Alternative Revenue Sources. 
Subsequently, the City Manager invited suggestions from the City workforce resulting 
in 158 suggestions. The suggestions fell into 3 broad categories:   
  

1) New and updated fees  
2) Transportation User Fee  
3) PARD Concessions and Marketing  
 

The Council will be provided proposals for each category of potential alternative 
revenues and an opportunity to provide direction on each category of Alternative 
Revenues.   
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: None.  
 
 
Attachments:  
 
Transportation User Fee 
New Fees 
Updated Fees 
PARD Concessions 
 
 
 
 

16



 
 
 
 
 

 

Executive Summary 
Alternative Revenue Proposal 

Transportation User Fee 
 
Synopsis  
The rapid growth of College Station is placing new and higher demands on the city’s 
transportation systems. The ever increasing demands for additional roadways and 
transportation upgrades is outstripping the City’s ability to pay for needed 
improvements. Three Texas cities (Bryan, Arlington, and Austin) have opted to impose a 
Transportation User Fee to fund transportation systems improvements and upgrades.  
 
A Transportation User Fee imposed by College Station has numerous benefits to the 
community.  
 

1) The fee provides a source of dedicated funds to make improvements to the 
growing transportation needs of College Station.  

   
2) The identification of specific projects to be undertaken provides a direct 

connection between fees paid and projects completed.  
 

3) Priority projects can be addressed in the near term rather than the long term.  
 

4) Provides for a more equitable distribution of transportation costs to users of the 
street system.  

 
5) Provides a stable source of revenue to support the development of the 

transportation system in support of Council’s priorities and Transportation 
Strategy to increase mobility and connectivity.  

 
6) Supports the Council’s economic development priorities.  

 
Fee Structure  
The Transportation User Fee would be levied on all College Station Utility customers 
except churches, schools, and governmental customers. Residential customers would be 
billed at a $10 monthly rate while commercial customers would be billed as follows:  
 

• Small commercial users $35 per month 
• Medium commercial users $55 per month  
• Large Commercial users $140 per month  

17



 
 
 
 
 

 

Projected Revenue  
It is projected the fee will generate $4.7 million annually with residential customers 
generating $3.2 million and commercial customers generating $1.5 million.  
 
Legality 

This type of fee is currently used by other cities in Texas.  The fee is not authorized by 
State legislation, but neither is it prohibited.  Should College Station implement a 
Transportation User Fee, there is a possibility it would be challenged in court.  Our legal 
position would be that home rule cities are allowed to levy taxes and this type of tax is 
not prohibited in any way.   

 
Use of the Fee 
 Since the fee could be challenged, the revenues should be used for priority 
transportation capital projects as established by Council on a pay-as-you-go basis and 
not for operations and maintenance. 
 
    

18



(000'025 - 000'01$= awoau! 

II!M luawpedap J~MM 'saieM all] 6u!]ea~] pue 6u!lpueq 40 1s 

quaururo3 aaff!ururo3 uo!gd!~3saa 

saq~ag JOJ saad 4!3 pajepdn pue MaN - z ho6aje3 

19



Category 2 - New and Updated City Fees for Services 

Attachment I Page 2 of 4 

20



Category 2 - New and Updated City Fees for Services 

Attachment I Page 3 of 4 

C 
0 .- C, 

9 
V) 
C 

8 
& 
u 
C 
3 
C, 

0 

a charge or assessment imposed on new development to generate 
revenue to fund or recoup the costs of capital improvements or 
facility expansion necessitated by and attributable to the new 
development; transportation impact fees need to be based on 
specific roadways in the CIP plan 
at Veterans. Southwood, Bee Creek, and Central Parks (1,000 
meters @ $5/month) Conference Center (revenue estimate = 
$60,000) 
provide means to even out utility bills with funds designated for 
specific use (beautification projects) (revenue estimate = unknown) 

city garage sale of surplus t-shirts and other stuff (revenue 
estimate = unknown) 
establish athletics. EXTRA education and instruction, and other 
programs as "self-supporting" activities (revenue estimate = 
unknown) 
Tucson maintains its intelligent transportation system by selling 
traffic flow data collected by it 
Albuquerque has a fiber optic network connecting 19 downtown 
buildings through the city's sewers; the fiber provides faster 
connections than previous copper wire the area businesses 
depended on; city receives a percentage of the company's gross 
revenue from telecommunications carriers that lease the fiber optic 
network 

purchase (2) transport ambulance and hire (9) paramedics to 
transport patients from hospital to hospital or to a medical facility 
on a daily basis (possible income = $1 million+) 
increase garage sale permit sales by offering a map similar to 
Bryan's; add to cost of permits since they add more value 
old Ags can log on for nostalgia or parents to check on children 
Thursday-Saturday evenings; or make it free to increase traffic to 
the website; web cam sponsorship would be valuable; similar to 
Strand Cam in Galveston 
allow game day parking in city lots for a fee with shuttles provided 
to and from the game, allow fire personnel to operate parking and 
shuttles; other features that could be offered include selling box 
lunches, football mums, and other COCS logo merchandise 

Increase amount employees pay for health 
care coverage 

Transportation impact fees 

Parking meters 

Utility bill round-up 

Garagesale 

Enterprise funds 

Selling traffic flow data 

Fiber optic network 

Charge for all alarm permits upon 
installation 
Transport ambulance service 

GIs garage sale map service 

Subscription service for Northgate Web Cam 

Game day parking and concessions 

- 

Evaluated each year based on balance of employee benefits fund 

Considered by Separate Committee 

Concern over residents having to pay to park to see kids play 
sports 

Determining projects eligible for round up funds questionable 

City conducts online auctions. Ebay under consideration. 

In order for parks activities to generate revenue sufficient to cover 
all expenses (sal and benefits, supplies, etc), price would be 
greater than citizens willing to pay 
Existing open records standards dictate cost for providing 
information to the public 
Start up costs 

No charge currently exists for permitting alarms. Difficult to 
determine who is installing alarms 
Would compete with private interests already providing service 

Concern that staff time spent entering info would not be recouped 
by fee 
Start up costs; interest in program 

No charge for parking at Post Oak Mall I shuttle service 

21



Category 2 - New and Updated City Fees for Services 

Attachment I Page 4 of 4 

Already in progress 

City currently collects Tech fee on all fines collected at Muni Court 

Refer to Parks Advisory Board 

City currently collects revenue from aluminum cans through 
curbside recycling and cans collected at City facilities. 

Could look at implementing. More info needed 

Could look at implementing. More info needed 

Not recommended by parks 

City currently receives a commission on gross receipts for vendors 
at starlight music series 
Could limit the number of vendors receiving bid notification 
(currently free), leading to higher costs for the city 

includes reviewing all existing fees to determine if they meet the 
cost recovery policy; some of the development fees are in this 
category; review all current fees and make adjustments as the cost 
of doing business continues to increase with fuel costs and with 
supply demands and increases; would include fees for fire system 
testing and approval, ambulance transport fees, emergency 
ambulance service to Brazos County, hazardous materials 
response cost recovery for all calls, parking tickets, etc. (possible 
income = $100.000+) 
be aggressive in finding and applying for grants 

increase parking fees at City lots 

allows court to purchase necessary equipment without relying on 
city budget allocations ($4 in Sugar Land. TX; $10 in Phoenix, AZ) 

start a pet cemetery in College Station @ $1001space maybe more 
(revenue estimate = $1 0.000) 
will better fund drainage capital projects and drainage operations 
and maintenance; current fee is $3.50 per residence per month 

collect and sell aluminum cans at city facilities (revenue estimate = 
unknown) 
Schedule item pickups on a quarterly basis instead of weekly and 
charge a fee for out-of-cycle collection requests; City currently 
provides a second day for garbageltrashlbulky item pick-up; a fee 
should be set up for this extra pick-up day (possible income = 
$100,000+) 
imposes fee of 2% of the gross charges on city customers for 
telecommunications services originating or received within city 
limits 
done to offset losses to franchise revenue caused by users 
switching from landlines to wireless phones; Baltimore, MD 
pioneered the practice and call it an excise fee instead of a tax; 
would be controversial and difficult to implement; MD courts 
recently reaffirmed Baltimore's right to levy the fee 
charge a percentage to caterers at city facilities (revenue estimate 
= unknown) 

charge $50 or more for those wanting to set up booths at the 
concerts or other events 
Charge vendors who want to receive automatic notification of 
upcoming bid opportunities with the city 

C 
.g + 
!! 
a, 
2 
cn 

s 
ti 
u 
C 
2 - 

'increase fees that do not meet cost recovery 
policy 

Grants 
Increased parking fees 

Court technology enhancement fee 

Pet Cemetery 

Increase drainage utility fee 

Aluminum cans 

Large brushlbulk collections 

Telecommunications Infrastructure 
Maintenance Fee 

Flat fee to cell phone users 

Catering fees 

Charge for tables or booths at Starlight 
Music Series 
Annual Subscription fee for vendor 
registration 

22



 
 
 
 
 

 

Executive Summary 
Alternative Revenue Proposal 

New and Updated Fees  
 
Synopsis  
City Council has an adopted fee policy which provides for the levying of fees for various 
services and programs. The existing cost of service model acknowledges 1) not all 
services provided by the City can be supported through general tax revenue; and 2) 
various services and programs are more aptly paid by the user than the general 
taxpayer. The current policy contains three levels of cost recovery:  
 

1) Full fee support (80-100% recovery) will be obtained from enterprise operations 
such as utilities, sanitation, landfill, cemetery, licenses, and permits.  

    
2) Partial fee support (50-80% recovery) will be generated by charges for emergency 

medical services, miscellaneous licenses and fines, and all adult sports programs.  
 

3) Minimum fee support (0-50% fee recovery) will be obtained from other parks, 
recreational, cultural, and youth programs and activities.  

 
College Station has over 100 authorized fees. There are several challenges associated 
with administering a fee structure of this magnitude.  
 

a. Appropriately categorizing each individual fee to match the 3-tier cost of service 
recovery.  

     
b. Resistance to fee increases by users which results in fees recovering less than the 

stated goal of Council policy.  
 

c. Administrative support required to support various fees which in some instances 
outweigh the revenue generated by the fee.  

 
Policy Proposal on Fees  
Prior to presenting specific fee proposals, there is a need to address several issues.  
 

1) Simplify existing fee structure. The number of fees levied by the City of College 
Station suggests a need to develop a more unified fee structure for ease of 
administration and to ensure equity. It is suggested fees be categorized into the 
following groups:  

23



 
 
 
 
 

 

a. Parks and Recreation fees 
b. Development fees  
c. Utility fees (electric, water, wastewater, sanitation, drainage, utility 

customer service) 
d. Public Safety (EMS transport, fire prevention, and police fees)  
e. Municipal court fees  
f. Miscellaneous fees (fees that do not fit other categories)  
   

2) Examine the 3 tier cost recovery system within existing policy for efficacy and 
equity. The current policy needs to be examined in light of specific objectives to 
be achieved through the levying of fees. For example, utility fees need to 
consider not only full cost recovery but consideration of capital investment and 
return on investment. Development fees need to be examined in light of whether 
the total cost of new development processing will be charged to the user or will 
the taxpayer be expected to support new development activities.  

    
3) Annual review of fees. Currently, all fees are not reviewed annually. The 

notable exception are  Parks fees.  
 

4) Affirmation of the existing cost recovery policy in which the city will seek to 
recover its costs for services rendered at minimum and to no greater degree than 
specifically authorized by Council for additional charges needed to satisfy fiscal 
policies.   

 
5) Provide for an automatic rate adjustment annually not to exceed the Consumer 

Price Index as published on January 1 each fiscal year.  
 

6) Examine the use of block fees for various services, e.g., development fees.  
 
Fee Adjustments  
As a practical matter, many existing fees will need to be adjusted systematically over the 
next 2-3 year period to bring them in line with the current cost recovery policy of the 
Council. In presenting specific fee adjustments, the administration proposes to 1) 
identify full cost recovery for all fees and adjust each fee to reflect whether it is a full cost 
recovery, partial cost recovery, or minimum cost recovery; 2) recommend a 1-3 year 
adjustment strategy for the fee to achieve the level of cost recovery based on Council 
policy; and 3) once a fee has reached the desired level of recovery, apply the automatic 
inflation adjustment to keep the fee current within Council policy.  
 
It is also suggested that every fee be examined in the context of whether the fee is 
necessary, cost effective, or should be combined with another fee.   

24



 
 
 
 
 

 

New Fee Considerations  
Through the Alternative Revenue Sources (ARS) process, 29 new fees were suggested. 
They range from the implementation of a city wide impact fee to levying an anti litter 
fee. The list of new fees is attached to this Executive Summary.  
    

25



 
 
 
 
 

 

Executive Summary 
Alternative Revenue Proposal 

PARD Concessions and Marketing 
 
Synopsis  
The sale of concessions items in city facilities is an untapped market. It is proposed to 
aggressively seek opportunities to provide, for profit, food, drink, snack and souvenir 
sales at all venues and events where this activity will generate a positive cash flow. This 
includes municipal athletic facilities, special events, public functions, concerts and other 
appropriate activities. The viability of concession operations is enhanced by the 
significant capital investment in new facilities at Veterans Park and the Wolf Pen Creek 
Amphitheater which serve thousands of visitors annually. In addition, existing facilities 
in other parks as well as new facilities planned for Adamson Lagoon swimming pool 
add to the potential of this venture in the future. 
 
Managed Competition  
It is proposed to use Managed Competition as the preferred method to identify an 
operator to provide concessions at all PARD facilities. Managed competition provides an 
opportunity for both internal and external parties to submit proposals to operate 
concessions under an agreement with the City. It provides for the best opportunity to 
insure the concessions operations are managed as a for profit business enterprise with a 
strong emphasis on customer service.  
 
The Managed Competition process will include the following elements:  
1)  Development of a formal Request for Proposals to seek competitive bids for vendors;  
2)  Investigation of potential vendors and creation of a qualified bidders list;  
3)  Development of an impartial process to evaluate both internal and external 

proposals to determine the one that is most advantageous to the City of College 
Station in terms of revenue and service.  

  
Marketing  
The Alternative Revenue Sources (ARS) Team evaluated the potential of joint marketing 
opportunities and corporate sponsorship as a possible source of revenue. The revenue 
potential is not believed to be substantial while creating adverse public reaction to 
wholesale private identification with City events and facilities. It is proposed to develop 
a corporate sponsorship policy for future Council consideration which would clearly 
define under what circumstance the City would seek and authorize corporate 
sponsorship. The revenue potential is likely to be minimal but could assist the City in 
underwriting various events and programs.  

26



 

 

November 20, 2006  
Workshop Agenda  

Red Light Camera System  
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Terry L. Childers, Deputy City Manager                          
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding possible 
implementation of Red Light Camera System for the City of College Station.   
 
Recommendation(s): Council consideration of a Red Light Camera System and 
provide direction to City Manager to develop a specific proposal for formal Council 
consideration.  
 
Summary: The Council is requested to consider the deployment of a Red Light Camera 
program in College Station. The primary motivation to consider the deployment of the Red 
Light Camera System is traffic safety. Recent national studies indicate accident reduction 
rates between 25-30%  in intersection injury crashes. Based on an analysis of College 
Station’s accident data, the installation of a Red Light Camera program could benefit the 
traveling public.  A full presentation will be made during the Workshop to assist the Council 
in evaluating the potential benefits of a Red Light Camera System to improve traffic safety 
in College Station.   
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Unknown at this time.   
 
 
Attachments:  
 
Red Light Camera Program  
 
 
 
 

27



 
 

 

Page 1 

Red Light Camera Program 
 
Red light camera photo enforcement is a growing trend in Texas cities. Photo 
enforcement is accomplished by city ordinance establishing the violation as a civil 
offense (like parking tickets) as opposed to a criminal offense (ticket issued by an 
officer). While public safety is the single most important reason to implement such a 
program, other agencies in Texas have used revenue generated from such a program for 
safety or transportation related projects. 
 
SAFETY FIRST – CRASH and CITATIONS ANALYZED 
National and State Statistics 
Red Light Cameras are currently used by over 150 United States communities in 20 
states and the District of Columbia. For 2003, the most recent year for which statistics are 
available, there were 206,000 red light running crashes, resulting in 934 fatalities and 
176,000 injuries (U.S. Department of Transportation, January 2005 as sited by Insurance 
Institute of Highway Safety). Recent studies show that photo enforcement leads to 25-30 
percent reduction in intersection injury crashes (National Campaign to Stop Red Light 
Running). The Federal Highway Administration in April 2005 reported “a modest to 
moderate economic benefit” to jurisdictions that installed the cameras, which yielded an 
average of $39,000 to $50,000 annually at each intersection where they were in use.  
 
A recent study conducted by the House Research Organization – Texas House of 
Representatives, July 2006, collected data from around the country at 132 intersections. 
The study found the cameras caused a reduction in right-angle crashes but an increase in 
rear-end collisions. Although data for intersections with and without cameras were 
nearly identical in terms of the total number of crashes, the study concluded that 
cameras can reduce costs because broadside crashes are more dangerous and cause 
greater damage than rear-end collisions The financial impact of crashes resulting from 
red light running in Texas is estimated at between $1.4 billion and $3 billion annually in 
medical, insurance and related expenses. 
 
College Station Traffic Data and Analysis 
Table 1 and Table 2 respectively provide information from the Police Department 
regarding the top locations where red light running citations were issued as well as top 
locations where crashes resulted from a motorist running a red light. The data in these 
tables are from a 33 month time period beginning in January 2004 and ending in 
September 2006. 
 
 

28



 
 

 

City of College Station    Page 2 
Red Light Camera Enforcement Proposal  

Table 1 shows  the number of citations issued to motorists running red lights at the 
intersections along Texas Avenue typically decreased between 2004 and 2006. This is 
thought to be result of the construction on Texas Avenue to widen it to a 6-lane roadway 
with a median. While it was difficult to enforce the traffic laws at the intersections of 
Texas Avenue prior to the beginning of the widening project, the construction further 
complicates the police department’s ability to perform enforcement at the intersections. 
The data from Table 1 cannot be broken into travel directions, which would reveal the 
intersection approaches where motorists most often disregard the red  light. The number 
of citations is a direct result of the police department’s ability to monitor and enforce the 
red light.  

Table 1. Top Citation Locations 
 

Number of Citations  Main Street  Intersecting Street  
2004  2005  2006  Total  

Texas Avenue  Walton Drive  318  216  173  707  
Texas Avenue  G. Bush Drive  413  159  28  600  
Texas Avenue  University Drive  132  193  106  431  
Texas Avenue  Holleman Drive  42  64  74  180  
Texas Avenue  Harvey Road  116  42  --- 176  
Texas Avenue  SW Parkway  --- --- --- 79  

Harvey Road  Dartmouth Street  --- --- --- 63  
SW Parkway  Wellborn Road  --- --- 29  61  

University Drive  South College  --- --- 29  50  
University Drive  Spence  --- --- --- 39  

 
The data from Table 2  provides information regarding the offending travel direction.  
An examination of both tables, indicates that the corridors with the most problems are 
Texas Avenue, University Drive, and Harvey Road. 
 

Table 2. Top Crash Locations 
 

Travel Direction  Main Street (travel 
directions)  

Intersecting Street  No. of 
Crashes  NB  SB  EB  WB  

Texas Ave. (NB/SB)  Holleman Drive  10  2  4  0  4  
Univ. Dr. (EB/WB)  South College  8  0  1  3  4  
Univ. Dr. (EB/WB)  Tarrow Street  7  0  1  4  2  
Harv. Mit. (EB/WB)  Longmire Drive  6  --- --- --- --- 
Texas Ave. (NB/SB)  University Drive  6  0  4  2  0  
Univ. Dr. (EB/WB)  SH 6  6  --- --- --- --- 
Harvey Rd (EB/WB)  Munson Avenue  5  --- --- --- --- 
Harvey Rd (EB/WB)  G. Bush Drive East  5  0  1  1  3  
Texas Ave. (NB/SB)  Walton Drive  5  4  1  0  0  
Texas Ave. (NB/SB)  Brentwood  5  --- --- --- --- 

29



 
 

 

City of College Station    Page 3 
Red Light Camera Enforcement Proposal  

Procedural Decision Points 
Outsourcing – College Station can outsource the entire red light photo enforcement 
program (with the exception of the validation process) to an outside vendor or can retain 
the collection process in-house, which would require an increase in staff. Outsourcing 
the entire program initially would allow College Station to evaluate the success of the 
program with very little risk to the city. On the other hand, should the city decide to 
handle collections in-house, it would be difficult to dismantle that process in the event 
that the city decides to terminate the program. 
 
Ordinance – Many cities that have already implemented this program have similarly 
modeled their ordinance. In order to remain consistent with these cities, College Station 
should consider  a similar ordinance. The major points of the ordinance provide: 

a. a civil penalty for creating dangerous intersections; 
b. registered owner liability; 
c. a $75.00 fee and a larger fee for the third violation or more in a twelve-month 

period; 
d. a $25.00 late payment fee; 
e. a process for contesting the civil penalty; 
f. affirmative defenses to the civil penalty (i.e. proof that the vehicle has 

been sold, or that another was operating the vehicle without the registered 
owner’s effective consent); 

g. a process to appeal an administrative finding to municipal court; 
h. that all fees collected will be used for a specific use like public safety, traffic 

safety, traffic improvements and intersection improvements. 
 

Awarding Contract – College Station can either use a Request for Proposal process or can 
use the current contract with approved vendors through HGAC. The fees appear to be 
competitive for either. The contract should provide: (a) a flat fee payment structure; (b) 
that the program will pay for itself; (c) a provision that permits termination with no cost 
to the city in the event that the program is banned by legislation; (d) that the City will 
maintain control of the designated intersections including control of the light 
sequencing, timing, etc.; and (e) that the cost of the equipment, its installation, operation 
and  maintenance will be the responsibility of the vendor. 
 
Grace Period – Red light photo enforcement programs typically provide an initial grace 
period in which violators receive a warning rather than a notice of violation. College 
Station, with its high student population, may consider more than one grace period in 
order to warn new students at the beginning of each academic year. These grace periods 
may be unnecessary after the first two years as most students should be familiar with 
photo enforcement, as more and more hometowns adopt similar programs.  
 
 
 

30



 
 

 

City of College Station    Page 4 
Red Light Camera Enforcement Proposal  

Public Education – The success of a red light photo enforcement program depends upon 
community support. Dialogue with the City of Bryan, Texas A&M University, the school 
district, local businesses and other community organizations. Media coverage and the 
tone of the media coverage is critical to program success. One or more city employees 
should be designated the city’s spokesperson for the program and should be trained 
accordingly. Involvement of the College Station Police Department may enhance 
credibility of the program.  
 
Use of Generated Revenue – Public perception of the revenue generated from a red light 
photo enforcement program will be critical to its success. The program is more likely to 
be supported by the community if the revenue is targeted for programs like 
transportation improvements. Limiting use of the generated revenue to specific needs 
will also help defeat any legislative attempt to curtail a city’s authority to implement 
these programs.  
 
Red Light Photo Enforcement Process 
Once the City Council approves the process and adopts an ordinance, and once the City 
has selected a vendor and completed site selection, the program will be implemented. 
The procedural steps should be as follows: 

1. The vendor will install the system at selected intersections. 
2. The vendor will process violations, discarding those that are obviously 

unenforceable (i.e. license plate obscured), and send remaining violations to the 
city for validation. 

3. City personnel  will validate the violations, discarding those that cannot or 
should not be enforced. 

4. The vendor will process those remaining valid violations (identify the registered 
owner) and send out the Violation Notice. 

5. Payments will be made to and processed by the vendor. 
6. Appeals will be made in writing to the vendor. 
7. The City will receive payments from the vendor or will provide an 

administrative hearing for those appealing. 
8. Appeals from the administrative hearing will be made to municipal court. 
9. Violations not appealed or paid will be referred by the vendor to a collection 

agency. 
 

Program Evaluation 
Evaluation of the program after its implementation will be critical to its success. College 
Station should be able to demonstrate to the community and the state that the red light 
photo enforcement program had the desired result of reducing collisions, injuries, and 
property damage at intersections. The City should also be able to demonstrate that the 
program generated enough revenue to pay for itself and that any additional revenue 
was  used for other transportation projects. Finally, the City should be able to evaluate 
the costs and benefits of potentially administering the collection in-house. 

31



 
 

 

City of College Station    Page 5 
Red Light Camera Enforcement Proposal  

 
TIMELINE and MILESTONES 
v November 1, 2006 Proposal submitted to City Manager office for review and 

consideration 
v November 20, 2006 Present proposal to Council for conceptual approval 
 

- Assuming Council approves - 
v November 20, 2006 Start Public Relations campaign (and continue throughout 

program implementation) 
v December 2006 Determine proposed intersections and approaches 
v December 2006 Draft RFP or evaluate vendors on HGAC contract 

(or other approved contract vehicle) 
v January 2007 If using RFP, release RFP and evaluate responses 

(skip this step is using HGAC contract) 
v February 2007 Select lead vendor and enter negotiations 
v March 2007 Take contract and ordinance to Council 
v March 2007 With vendor assistance, finalize list of intersections and 

approaches 
v March 2007 Take (TxDOT) Amendment to Municipal Maintenance Agreement for 

the Furnishing, Installing, Operation and Maintenance of Cameras on State Highway 
Rights-Of-Way to Monitor Compliance with Traffic-Control Signals (as amended 
August 24, 2006) 

 
v April 2007 Co-ordinate with TxDOT District Office for placement on TxDOT road 

intersections 
v April 2007 Install and test equipment 
v April – May 2007 Grace Period (test and evaluate installation and processes 

during this period) (Note: the Council may wish to grant a grace period at the 
beginning of each semester) 

v June 2007 Start enforcement 
v September 2007 90 day preliminary evaluation update to Council 
v December 2007 Provide 6 month evaluation 
v June 2008 Provide 12 month evaluation 
 
CONCLUSIONS 
Should the Council approve implementation of such a program in College Station, the 
primary goal should be to save lives by reducing the incidence of red light running and 
life-threatening injuries it causes. In conclusion, a successful program for the City of 
College Station should take the following information into account: 
v Speeding enforcement in school zones should be researched further and considered 

after the successful implementation of a red light photo enforcement program 
v Create ordinance establishing fees and appeal process 

32



 
 

 

City of College Station    Page 6 
Red Light Camera Enforcement Proposal  

v Solicit proposals or contract with approved vendor on an existing cooperative 
program 

v Pre-determine use of generated income 
v Establish grace period(s) 
v Approve a cost neutral contract. The City would not be obligated to pay expenses 

greater than revenue received. 
v Establish a comprehensive public education campaign 
v Conduct a study within the City of College Station with an approved vendor which 

would assist in identifying most appropriate locations and provide more accurate 
revenue projections. 

v Install the cameras along different corridors within the City to provide the best 
coverage. 

 
 

33



 

November 20, 2006 
Workshop Agenda  

Update on Comprehensive Plan Process 
 
 

To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning and Development Services                         
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding an update 
on the comprehensive plan process.  
 
Recommendation(s): N/A 
 
Summary: Staff will provide Council with an update on the comprehensive plan 
process including results from focus group meetings, CPAC meetings, upcoming 
public input opportunities, and Council / P&Z Commission briefings.  
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A  
 
Attachments: 
1. Focus Group Summary 
 
 
 

34



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

College Station Comprehensive Plan Update 

FOCUS GROUP SUMMARY 
 
On October 26‐27, 2006, a series of small‐group interview sessions was conducted as part of 
the  “Discovery  and  Reconnaissance”  phase  of  our work  program  as  consultant  for  the 
College Station Comprehensive Plan Update. These “focus groups” consisted of one‐hour 
discussions between Gary Mitchell, AICP, principal of Kendig Keast Collaborative (or Sean 
Garretson with TIP Development Strategies  for  the  two Economic Development  sessions) 
and anywhere from 10 to 30 community members in each session. Participants offered their 
insights  and  concerns  about  current  conditions  in  College  Station  and  their  ideas  and 
preferences as to how the community will develop over the next 20 years and beyond. 
 
These  informal conversations,  together with  the broader  input  to be  received  through  the 
upcoming Citizens Congress on December 4, 2006, will become the foundation of the City’s 
new  long‐range  plan.  The  plan  is  issue‐driven,  meaning  that  it  began  with  issues 
identification, moved  into  exploration  of  the  nature  and  cause  of  these  issues,  and will 
result,  ultimately,  in  an  expressed  deliberate  course  of  action  to  overcome  obstacles  and 
resolve difficulties to achieve the community’s overall vision for the Year 2025. 
 
The  following  topical sessions were completed over  the course of  the  two days  (City staff 
documented the attendance by session).  Some topics were repeated due to greater interest.  
Concurrent sessions on Transportation and Economic Development were held on Friday. 
 
Thursday, October 26 
1. Historic Preservation (9:00 a.m.) 
2. Transportation (10:00 a.m.) 
3. Growth Management (11:00 a.m.) 
4. Parks and Greenways (1:00 p.m.) 
5. Land Use & Community Character 

(2:00 p.m.) 
6. Housing & Neighborhoods (3:00 p.m.) 
 
 
 

Friday, October 27 
7. Growth Management (9:00 a.m.) 
8. Economic Development (10:00 a.m.) 
9. Transportation (11:00 a.m.) 
10. Economic Development (11:00 a.m.) 
11. Transportation (1:00 p.m.) 
12. Land Use & Community Character 

(2:00 p.m.) 
13. Growth Capacity (3:00) 
 

On the following pages are summary notes from the focus groups, compiled by topic. 

35



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 2 of 18 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Barriers 

• Barriers to diversifying the economy have been transportation, no interstate, airport – businesses 
want to be able to get in and out fast. 

• Need to focus on infrastructure needs; don’t have the workforce we need, and the ability to get 
people to and from here is a challenge (i.e., they get stranded at the airport). 

• Need to improve airport if you want to bring in more national people and businesses, airport is a 
need that we as a community have very little control over because it is owned by the university. 

• Lacking in urban character and housing appeal. Great place for college, great place to raise a 
family, but not for those in between. People want to move to downtown, want a townhome. 
Currently the city lacks character. 

• You have a great talent base, but you need to transform College Station (CS) into a cooler 
community in order to retain youth. 

Opportunities 

• Need to develop partnerships with Texas A&M University (TAMU). 

• Need to keep talent here by diversifying economy. 

• Need to recruit commuter‐type, full‐time jobs with benefits – everything that comes here is 
part‐time, except government. 

• Northgate – potential as a “cool” place. City needs to look at what attracts 25‐40 year olds. 

• Figure out a way to get to Intercontinental Airport in less than an hour. 

• Entertainment areas along the creek, tie into amphitheatre, like Market Street in The Woodlands. 

• Work with TAMU to tie everything together through a transportation corridor – Northgate, 
University, creek. 

• Bring Northgate back a little, with “live‐work” businesses. 

• Mall – develop strategy to help retail market become more viable. 

 
GROWTH CAPACITY  (Utility Infrastructure & Public Services) 

Drainage 
• Underbrush needs to be cleared from waterways. 
• Problem for those who live near floodplain – when it rains you end up with rivers in people’s 

backyards. 
• Police Department – entire back where they store the equipment is built on a pond, so they have 

to move all vehicles when it rains. 
• This is routine, happens every time you get over three inches of rain. 
• Water sits for days in areas that do not have curb and gutter. 
Water 
• Drinking water is disappearing – salt water, desalination plants as an option. 

36



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 3 of 18 

• No plan to go to surface water, sitting on one of the best aquifers, it is recharging, will put a cap 
on the number of new wells. 

• Looking at desalination locally, so it won’t be pumped from the Gulf. 
• With some conservation measures can get peaking factor down. 
• Will start pumping effluent for irrigating playing fields.  Can wastewater be used to irrigate 

boulevards?  If you can get it there economically (difficult). 
• Don’t think it is possible to convince developers to institute water conservation measures until it 

is necessary. 
• City of Coppell uses plants for streetscaping that require very little water. 
• Water resource coordinator has worked with the planning department to offer incentives when 

people use xeriscaping. 
• Aquifer is 3,000 feet deep – Region G water planning group (through Texas Water Development 

Board) has done studies on how much growth this will accommodate. 
Wastewater 
• Sewage is a concern, extending CNN area in the ETJ. 
• Two treatment plants, one at one‐quarter capacity and the other at two‐thirds capacity. 
• City of Bryan is building a plant on the west side, and CS is currently working with them to take 

some capacity on the west. CS will build a facility on the east to take sludge, so that will increase 
capacity at Carter Creek. 

• There are no developer Municipal Utility Districts (MUDs) in the CS area (but other utility 
providers). 

Police 
• Currently have 1.3 officers per 1,000 persons – national standard is 1.7 per 1,000. Currently 

working with City on their projections and going through five‐year plan to see what growth is 
going to be like. 

• Police concerned with area growth and staffing levels that are necessary. 
• How do we compare to other cities of our size? When compared to police departments of 

24 other cities we were third lowest in terms of staffing levels. 
Fire 
• Went up 12 percent on calls in 2004; 2005 and 2006 had 20 percent increase. 
• Call volumes are up in north‐end university area – large opportunity for loss. Need more 

resources in north, but growing toward the south. So need more fire stations in the south, will 
have to add more stations (on east side of SH 30). 

• Police help with fire emergency response, depends on where the officer is. 
• Traffic on SH 6 has increased, improvements on Texas will help. 
• Fire Department response‐time goal is five minutes – can do that for 95 percent of city, on SH 30 

cannot even with the opening of Fire Station 6.  Will continue to need connectivity as city grows 
south, east and west. 

• Currently respond all over Brazos County, assist TAMU as needed, do hazardous materials 
response for the seven counties around us. 

37



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 4 of 18 

Development Impacts and Issues 
• Developers install nearly everything – need more strategic thinking on where utilities could be 

encouraged. 
• Developable acres in the school district that have sewer – there is a 15‐year supply.  What if we 

extend sanitary sewer beyond the city limits into other school districts? 
• Sewer is the key for development, can always get water. 
• Oversize participation is great help to developers. 
• Have done impact fees in some areas, looking at system‐wide impact fees. 
• Regional detention has worked in other places, could be an amenity. 
School District 
• Schools are growing 3.5 percent per year. District waits to see where the kids are going to be and 

then put the schools there. Growing in K‐3 and then staying stagnant. 
Other Issues 
• Electrical supply – should we offer incentives to encourage efficiency? Currently trying to buy a 

baseload. 
• Have not pulled together all the different service plans. 
• All facilities will need to start adding staff to deal with growth, and then you will have to expand 

facilities. 
• Library – need to look at options for expansion. 
• Entire array of City services will need to be expanded to accommodate growth – how? City will 

have new sales tax dollars, but there will be a lag time between that and service provision. 
• Need for economic development effort to match what we are doing as a city – we are going after 

businesses, but we have more people than we can accommodate. 
• Right now we are subsidizing TAMU – need a better tax base. 

 
GROWTH MANAGEMENT 

Current Growth Patterns and Issues 
• CS is a destination and is definitely growing – we need to manage growth but won’t be able to 

shut it off. 
• Growing better than we are managing – growth is occurring fast. 
• Opportunities for infill – some are being done properly, but there are other opportunities. 
• Not doing a good job of managing the growth. 
• Despite this we are ending up with a nice community – we have nice neighborhoods. 
• Not doing a good job of managing growth outside the city limits – sprawl. 
• Redevelopment is more difficult than new development – need to encourage development at the 

core – this will help problems at the periphery. 
• Leaving so many structures empty, it is becoming an eyesore. 
• You can’t stop growth, so you need to manage it. 
• We are trying to control growth; however, the harder you try to control the worse it gets – too 

much control can pose more problems (like Fairfax VA, Austin). 

38



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 5 of 18 

• Would like to see Bryan get some of the growth, even though they are getting more than they 
were 10 to 20 years ago. 

• Taxpayers are going to have to be aware that they will have bear a burden if they want City to 
manage growth. 

Factors Influencing Growth 
• Getting to TAMU – development is going in where the Aggies buy their food, where they live, 

where they recreate, and how they get to A&M. 
• Explosion of growth outside the city limits – at some point these areas may be annexed, so we 

can’t just focus on growth in the city. 
• Part of what is happening is beyond our control – we live in the orbit of Houston, Navasota will 

eventually become a bedroom community for Houston. 
• Texas will get a significant amount of growth (15 percent increase over the next decade) – we are 

in the center of that, that has huge implications for CS. Need to change attitude from growth 
management to growth accommodation. Need things that will diversify the tax base so we can 
afford to accommodate the additional growth. How are we going to pay for infrastructure? How 
are we going to get ahead of the growth curve? How are we going to handle sanitary sewer, 
drainage basins? 

• Why is growth occurring south and not on the other side of the Bypass? 
‐ Available land for development. 
‐ Floodplain. 
‐ School district boundaries (positive perception of College Station ISD). 
‐ Carter Creek east, Bryan to the north, huge magnet (Houston) to the south. 
‐ Growing number of people working in/toward Houston. 
‐ Rail initiative in Houston – all the way to CS? Then we will become the bedroom community of 
Houston. 

• Retiree population – getting more and more of it, already have a weekend home market. 
• Increase in student population at TAMU, and it’s driving down home prices. 
• Population growth due to our location as the hub between population centers in the state. This is 

a bedroom community that will ultimately expand into Navasota, and the opening of the SH 6 
corridor will be the beginning.   

• 35‐50 years is the bedroom community cohort that can afford the commute and the homes. 
• TAMU will continue to grow – need housing and infrastructure to support that. 
• Don’t want to be an Austin, but there are opportunities along those lines. We are the Research 

Valley. We do offer a family‐oriented community. 
• Quality of life is nice, TAMU is good, and some students don’t leave; outlying areas impact CS 

because they commute in and spend their money here. 
• Huge drop in property values as you cross the school district line to the south into Navasota. 
• Very family‐oriented town, and the City is good about supporting that. The schools are very 

good. Families choose to come here because of the school district. There are several types of 
growth: TAMU, retirees, families, etc. The issue is when and where they intersect with one 
another. They are each looking for something different. 

39



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 6 of 18 

• Population growth (professionals) outstrips student population growth. Issue is the commercial 
developers who see opportunity and flood the market with types of development that does not 
have the growth to sustain it and it crashes.  

• Would like to see some focus on the types of development that is being encouraged to come here 
– not necessarily all retail, need more higher‐paying jobs so that people don’t have to commute. 

• There seems to be tremendous loyalty to the area – people want to give back to the community. 
• B‐CS essentially functions as a single entity. They feed off each other, and there should be a 

higher degree of cooperation. 
• TAMU is the engine that drives the community. Surprised by some lack of accommodations 

made for students. 
Growth Management Tools 
• Zoning in the city, subdivision regulation, thoroughfare plan, utilities plans and extension 

policies, and impact fees are the major tools for growth management. 
• Problem is looking to tools without looking at the comprehensive plan, which is the policy. For 

example, policy was to increase densities around university; however, every time we tried we 
were met with resistance, so the tool must be flawed or the City is not meeting it. 

• There are areas where higher densities would work (e.g., area behind Bank of America).  City 
needs to take the initiative and pursue this policy in targeted areas. 

• Smart growth includes neighborhood connectivity, higher density, neighborhood commercial; 
however, whenever those items are proposed neighborhoods complain and then it falls to pieces. 

• Need to make core development attractive because City doesn’t have as much control in the ETJ. 
• If the City changes zoning over time it will change the course of development. 
• As a community we have required the builders to build infrastructure, with the City reimbursing 

30 percent of the cost.  The City should take the lead in building infrastructure where they want 
to see commercial and residential development. 

• Need for balanced growth not smart growth. Have to have growth to keep the engine of City 
government going.  How do we balance growth in terms of economic development, and who is 
going to pay for everything? 

• Annexation – the City will begin to develop a three‐year annexation plan as required by statute. 
Tremendous amount of pressure for development just outside the city limits. Concern over 
ability of City to aggressively annex and afford cost of providing traditional city services. 

• Need to have a long‐range annexation plan that is more visionary. 
What Tools Are Not Being Used 
• Want to protect the quality of life here. Need to think about the pace of consumption of land. 

Can’t walk anywhere here – and that will continue to erode the quality of life. Mixed use is not a 
dirty word, and looking at other medium‐sized cities around the state can provide solutions. Add 
walkability to the mix. Where will open space go? Is anyone thinking long term?   

• Concerned about the City becoming very linear along Texas Avenue. Need annexation to provide 
for another 2818 out east. Concerned about all the strip malls going up with three to four stores 
empty – how many barber shops and nail shops can you handle? 

• Planning & Zoning is more loyal to developers than to the residents. Recommendations that 
come to City Council seem to focus on ways to accommodate the developers. 

40



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 7 of 18 

• Enforcing comprehensive plan and zoning regulations is a matter of political will. Also 
developers run to Austin to complain about local regulations. Cities need to be more aggressive 
with the state legislature too. 

• Walkability sounds good, but people are not going to use it – no one is going to walk to the 
grocery store in the dead of summer. People want more police/fire protection – where does that 
money come from? 

• Not true – survey done last year shows a consensus among students that those who can walk 
places do. South of Rock Prairie people are living next to commercial properties. Just because it’s 
hot people still walk.  

• City is behind in annexation. Growth here is in many directions – have infill in small areas 
throughout the city.  

• Are rules in place? Mixed use was in place for some time, but there has to be a change in the 
mindset. There’s a lack of consensus. 

• Taking tracts that need infill, for example – only the 10% who complain show up. Few show up 
to support the City. 

• Public transportation – cannot have an all‐car solution. There are regional plans under way at the 
Council of Governments (COG), but there must be solutions at a reasonable price. How many 
students use the buses now? Where do you spend your money? 

• As the community meets a certain threshold the focus is not on public transportation but on 
where are people when they get off the bus? Do they have to get in the car? The two highest 
public transit users are seniors and students.  

• Projects around town need to be more pedestrian friendly. Need more sidewalks for example.  
What is Working Well 
• Some of the redevelopment at George Bush and Texas has been good. Culpepper Plaza is due for 

redevelopment. City should encourage some smaller developments – don’t need massive 
developments.  

• What about vertical development? Is that being encouraged? Land is so cheap here there’s no 
incentive. Northgate is the only area where two stories is required in all three sections, and that is 
tough. Driven by the economy. 

• Didn’t move here to be in the city – could stay in Houston for that. Want to have a yard and place 
for kids to run. Want a little space. Developers are essentially building what we evidently want.  

• The majority of developers here live here. A lot of them want multi‐modal mixed use. Most of 
our planning staff lives here too. The old comprehensive plan was not great, and it’s been too 
long since the last update.  Maybe cluster development is a good option that should be 
considered.  

• B‐CS is the regional hub for the Hearnes, Navasotas, etc. – because we want those dollars to 
support our City services. Some regional economic development is necessary with some scale – 
residential development is not enough to expand the tax base. 

Other 
• South of George Bush Drive – someone bought a home for $300K and then tore it down.  
• Why is growth occurring in the county? One factor is the difficulty of getting projects done where 

the City controls them – if it were easier you might see more development.  Need to change the 
development process – outside the city is always easier because there are hardly any regulations. 

41



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 8 of 18 

• There are opportunities within the city center that will help the city grow.  The City should 
encourage appropriate development through city‐initiated zoning changes and street 
abandonment.  Make the city more attractive for development, and give developers/businesses 
a good place to build. 

• We have good staff in the planning department; however, the process is difficult – for example, 
staff is working with ordinances that were written 20 or 30 years ago. Ordinances and standards 
need to be consistent and easy to interpret. 

• Development process – partly a function of the number of people, also a function of updated 
ordinances – subdivision ordinance needs to be in line with Unified Development Ordinance 
(UDO). Need to be holistic – right now have too much stuff in the system. 

• More seniors are relocating to CS – it would be nice to see a senior community here. 
• Growth management does not mean Texas Avenue. 
• Growth management needs metrics – they disappear here when they don’t bode well for the 

developers. 
• We need to think about how the natural environment affects us. 
• Disagree completely with limited housing developments – open ourselves up to fraud. 
• Need easy access to Texas Avenue – that brings people here from outside the City. 
• What happens to old apartment complexes in the inner city? Are we creating a donut hole?   
• Need to look at loft apartments in Bryan as examples. 

 
HISTORIC PRESERVATION 

• “Heritage Conservation” is a better term. 
Overlooked Assets 
• Homes – more broadly neighborhoods, neighborhood integrity. 
• Parks. 
• Business preservation – older buildings. 
Historic Resources at Risk 
• Need historic conservation focus to form our identity – great place to raise a family but there’s 

a lot more that people are missing. We have parks and places in the city that have a story that 
people are missing. We have a tendency to bulldoze. 

• We need to identify what we have – our database needs some attention. Not only TAMU 
involved, but the schools aren’t doing a good job of teaching through history. TAMU has done a 
better job within the past five years of identifying their resources, and there is now a master plan 
so it’ll stop tearing down its own resources.  

• Don’t feel that people value older homes out on South Knoll – it’s an area in limbo. Developers 
keep pushing you out to tear down and build new. The significance of homes that are 60, 70 years 
old is important.  

Specific Areas Where Preservation is a Particular Concern 
• A few months ago the City Council and the Historic Conservation Committee took a tour of 

homes that had been moved off campus – there is a great deal of interest.  
• It’s not just what was there in 1938, but CS has an identity – because of the neighborhoods. New 

residents have no ties to the neighborhoods – Foxfire has a distinct identity and should be valued 

42



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 9 of 18 

as much as the South Knoll neighborhood, but in different ways. CS has a broader identity than 
TAMU. 

• Cypress Meadow south of Rock Prairie – there’s a transitory nature to the community. 
Lessons Learned 
• The historic preservation should be connected visually – unified design style where things are 

tied together so that people as they tour through town should be able to grasp the identity of the 
community. There’s no downtown but there are pockets scattered around that need to be 
connected. 

• Don’t need each franchise at your doorstop – sprawl does not lead to a community’s identity. 
• Mayor Boswell planted 5,000 live oaks to be distributed throughout the community. Brazos 

Beautiful made an effort to plant crepe myrtles. No one knows the story of how those efforts 
came about. 

• There’s a tree on Munson Drive that dictated the flow of traffic because the City didn’t want to 
cut it down. 

• Bryan had a head start because they had a downtown. Lee Street is an issue because of the huge 
homes going in next to historic homes that are 50+ years old.  

• Under the City’s program, the owner requests the historic designation and it’s a process that is 
entered into a database. It’s just a recognition at this time. 

• Does the City need to take it further? Many of the older neighborhoods do not have 
neighborhood associations. Without the resident interests – the City would allow inconsistent 
uses such as a duplex going into an historic neighborhood. The architectural committee has done 
some good, but the City identifies historic buildings as those that are 50 years old. South Knoll is 
a limbo area because they’re not quite 50 years, but they are of value. 

Strategies Outside College Station 
• In New England there’s an effort to save the old buildings.  
• Bryan has done a wonderful job of preserving their downtown. 
Other 
• There should be more stringent guidelines for development in older residential neighborhoods. 
• We do have Northgate – there are some restrictions/regulations in place, but there needs to be a 

balance. That’s the closest thing we’ll have to a traditional downtown. Trying to give businesses 
an opportunity to expand as needed and not cause economic challenges to the businesses. 

• College Hills/Eastgate – TAMU drives this community, and with them attempting to preserve 
their history the City should follow suit. 

• City neighborhood lunches sponsored by the City and historic preservation committee. They 
happen 10 months out of the year and are filled each month – they’re “marvelous.” It’s an 
opportunity for people to connect with each other. They are scanning old newspapers and other 
artifacts. 

• Need education for newcomers to the community. 
• There is a museum group forming for the Brazos Valley. 
• HOLD – Historic Online Database. Effort to compile any and every aspect of CS life.  
• People should make more effort to be neighborly. It’s hard to get to know each other.  

 

43



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 10 of 18 

HOUSING & NEIGHBORHOODS 

This Comprehensive Plan will not be Effective if it Fails to Confront … 
• Affordability. 
• Code enforcement and the volume of renters in the community. 
• Rental properties in College Hills and other places – how can the City better deal with renters? 
• College Park – maintaining the character of the town; Oak Park is building “McMansions” out to 

the lot line, and concerned that it will occur in College Park; there are no deed restrictions and no 
neighborhood associations in this area. 

• Character and identity. 
• Criminal activity – ordinance violations. 
• Rental registration – difficult to determine who owns the house so that code enforcement could 

be accomplished. 
• There are a lot of areas that are in transition, underutilized, and in need of redevelopment. 
• Neighborhoods are the backbone of this community. 
• There must be a way to prevent every house from becoming a rental house that is not cared for. 
• Pershing Park – parking on the streets; parking on Anderson near the soccer fields was a 

nightmare; Pershing and Shetland and now four trucks park there overnight and it makes life 
difficult. 

• Integrity, neighborhood planning, code enforcement. 
• Overall traffic and parking throughout older residential neighborhoods. 
Specific Areas Where Housing Issues are of Greatest Concern?  
• Code enforcement – a violation notice is mailed to the owner, but no one follows up to see if the 

issue was resolved. 
• Rental properties, parents buying homes for students. 
• In one neighborhood homeowners made it clear to real estate agents that if they showed 

properties for rent the residents would not be giving them their business. 
• Noise is a $395 fine, the second time is a $595 fine and a trip to jail. It’s effective.  
• Northgate – the noise ordinances are not effective because they get ticketed as a nuisance issue 

not a noise issue (even though they monitor their own noise). 
• College Hills – try to send a packet each time someone moves in to spell out what is expected of 

them. The president of the group is a realtor and tracks it. 
• Wolf Pen – out of 48 units, 20 are students, and we are ringed by homes with dogs that bark 

endlessly and it’s difficult to control. 
• We are upside‐down in our ordinances – for example, trash pickup; the owner becomes the bad 

guy versus the renter, who should be fined unless it is explicitly spelled out in the lease 
agreement. 

Other 
• Affordable housing – on a national level we’re not riddled with red tape and we’re extremely 

affordable; there are some neat, nice opportunities, but you have to get on the outskirts to do it; 
infill is too difficult. 

44



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 11 of 18 

• Courting new businesses takes precedence over the folks that are already here (for example, 
Lincoln Avenue and the traffic signal being moved to Barnes & Noble). Which economic 
development takes priority – new or old? 

• Thoroughfare planning – badly needed here – cannot comprehensively plan without one. 
• Comprehensive planning needs to be followed up with neighborhood planning to drill down to 

the next level. 
• Encourage diversity of housing stock – lots of single‐family development. 
• Need townhomes/duplexes near campus – very little zoning around to support it. 
• “Game Day” development in Northgate – intended as high‐end condos that will not allow 

students (geared toward alumni). 

 
LAND USE & COMMUNITY CHARACTER 

This Comprehensive Plan will not be Effective if it Fails to Confront … 
• Quality of life. 
• Growth. 
• Compatibility of neighborhoods. 
• Cultural diversity in population. 
• Code enforcement and drainage – additional codes are not the solution. 
• Neighborhoods. 
• Maintain the rural edge of CS. 
• Control of growth. 
• Character. 
• Must define quality of life somewhere in the plan – means different things to different people. 
• Neighborhood integrity. 
• Preservation of the natural environment – tree protection. 
• Traffic. 
• Long‐term growth. 
• Connectivity of the community. 
• Where we want our businesses. 
Recent Developments You Have Liked 
• Corner of George Bush and Texas Avenue (Bed Bath and Beyond center) – the parking lot is not 

so overbearing, parking is on roof. 
• Wolf Pen Creek – has a sense of neighborhood. 
• New extension of Wolf Pen Creek Park – would be ideal if whole city was surrounded by 

floodplain where you could prohibit development. 
• Growth of hotels and restaurants has been good for city. 
• Restaurant area on University; however, would like to see parking in the back so it is more of a 

walking and pedestrian area – put entrances on the parking side. 
• Parks. 
• TAMU. 

45



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 12 of 18 

• Bikeway at Bee Creek Park and Wolf Pen Creek, but they missed some opportunities there. 
• Historic District just south of the campus across George Bush. 
• Northgate – it’s in flux but contributes some unique character (The Deluxe no longer there). 
Recent Developments You Have Not Liked 
• Removed greenery in widening Texas Avenue. 
• Trees are all gone (for example, Courtyard Hotel at Rock Prairie and Bypass). 
• Maybe it’s an issue of utilities and where the City’s regulations require they be placed – but lots 

of examples to draw from around the state of how development occurs without sacrificing 
vegetation. 

• Disagreement about what thoughtful planning means – town centers versus sprawling 
commercial development. 

Types of Development You Would Like to See 
• Would like something to mark the center of city, like fountains. 
• Would like to see more planned‐unit, mixed‐use developments. Use floodplain to establish 

clear‐cut boundaries. 
• Would like a tree‐lined roadway like SH 6 in Sugar Land.  Problem is the type of trees here – any 

development near them kills the trees, so it is not always possible. 
• Need to screen existing facilities like Home Depot. 
• Would like to see more hedges around developments. 
• Need for more redevelopment – should not just use trees to hide how ugly our buildings are –

instead we need to look at redevelopment. 
• Look at form‐based zoning code – offer opportunity to determine character so uses will blend 

into existing character. 
• Use other incentives like tax incentives to encourage redevelopment (Culpepper Plaza). 
• For neighborhoods there should be some type of incentive to upgrade. 
• Green architecture that encourages less energy consumption – this needs to be aggressively 

approached. 
• Need for redevelopment instead of new development – development should occur inside the city 

limits. 
• Emerald Forest and 2818 – don’t want to see the lake go away. Hope City can buy as City Center 

with restaurants, no big box, not strip malls – ideal area for business park or shopping center. 
• 2818 on the west side – potential for nonresidential.  
• Think regionally about future development as there are a lot of brownfields in Bryan that would 

be appropriate for industrial development. 
• Look at infill for industrial, but not at the edge of city as the edge offers a nice buffer. 
• Residential development – currently there are no requirements for landscaping – some 

developers care, some don’t. 
• Would like to see a neighborhood conservation clause in the code (like Bryan). 
• Bryan’s overlay is working. 
• Redevelopment in Eastgate – redevelopment is just as important as development. 
• Rural edge – must be maintained. 

46



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 13 of 18 

• Need to be planning for a certain look. 
• Need to identify areas for new development while preserving the old. 
Barriers/Obstacles 
• Vermont is not a fair comparison because it’s a different animal here. About one out of three 

residents is a student – we are a college community.  
• What about large master‐planned communities? The pattern here is smaller lots with older 

residences purchased in what was then suburban with expectation to stay suburban. Citizens of 
older neighborhoods do not want to lose that. 

• Mixed use adjacent to residential (for example, Central Market in Austin). 
• We don’t have ordinances in place to facilitate tree preservation or planting of more trees. 
• Allowed neighborhoods to go in 300 feet off of major arterials. Now we have to deal with people 

who don’t want to carry the burden of the uses. We already have these pods around town (for 
example, east side of town).  

• Residents need to accept the fact that development around their neighborhoods is inevitable. The 
codes need to be rewritten. 

• We want to be CS, not Austin or Georgetown – but must think big picture when it comes to our 
codes. We are about to get another influx of additional students and will feel that ripple effect.  

• Largest demographic we’ll experience in the next five years is retiring Aggies. 

 
PARKS & GREENWAYS 

Best Things City has Done in Recent Years related to Parks and Recreation 
• Have 42 projects this year ($17M) – just approved park #51, approaching 1,300 acres of parkland. 
• Upper side of Wolf Pen Creek. 
• Number of parks. 
• Quality of the parks – forethought of the parks staff and City. 
• Trails. 
• Improving and expanding the facilities in the parks. 
• Central Park – good efforts. 
• Edelweiss – very well used. 
• Thomas and Central Parks – provide lots of facilities at a single location. 
• Dynamic – wide range of ages/users. 
• Shade structures. 
• City is very proactive with their parks, and they reflect that. 
• Neighborhood parks – City goes around to residents and asks what they’d like to see in a park 

before they implement; also 80‐90% are within walking distance to most neighborhood parks. 
• Veteran’s Park – can be an economic draw for the City, moved to phase 2B ahead of schedule. 
• Walking paths/trails at most parks. 
• Every subdivision has to have a park at time of approval. 
• Leadership in City staff and elected official – recognize the long‐term value. 
• The beginnings of a network between the parks. 

47



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 14 of 18 

• They’re growing like crazy. 
Greatest Deficiency 
• More “pet friendly” parks – Steeplechase Park is a dedicated space, also Lake Creek. 
• Would like to see more pools – not a new one since 1988; multiple uses at parks would be nice. 
• Lots of kids are not involved in formal sports; would like to see a skate park. 
• Lap lane availability for seniors; don’t think you should be able to rent a public pool. 
• Interpretive trails (trees, vegetation) – we’re losing track of our sense of place. 
• Would like to see an urban park area – open mall or public gathering spaces; on the plans for 

Northgate, but not there yet. 
• Would like to see more natural areas – more trees. 
• Greenway planning tends to be an exercise in watershed management – Wolf Pen Creek is 

beautiful but it’s in a backyard – would like more “front yard” spaces. 
• More mini parks/pocket parks. 
• Denver’s greenbelt system is a fine example of a comprehensive system. 
• Use a bufferyard for park space between different residential densities. 
• Greenways have been a touchy subject here: What constitutes a greenway and who can own one? 

Permitted activities in greenways? Joint use of greenways by precluding them as park space.  
• Parks are expensive and we must determine who will pay for them. 
• No park requirements in the ETJ – have to purchase it outright. That’s how Central Park and 

Lake Creek were acquired, otherwise they would have been lost. 
Barriers 
• Greenways are split between public works and parks/recreation departments – need them to 

work together. 
• What happens in the ETJ? – Timberline is one of the most beautiful drives in the county. 
• Greenways need to be incorporated into the plan ahead of time. 
• No advance acquisition in place – have done some item‐by‐item acquisition in the past but not a 

comprehensive plan. 
• Concerned about the pattern of residential development – City will have more greenways than 

they know what to do with due to development occurring in the floodplain. This goes back to 
determining a definition of a greenway. 

• University/Texas/2818/George Bush/Harvey – few to no safe crossing points for cyclists. 
• Tree ordinances and setbacks should be pursued – would like to see the ordinances beefed up in 

this regard. 
• 77 acres in the ETJ were developed to build 330 homes – every tree on the 77 acres was removed. 

Without a county population of 700,000, the County has no authority.  
Features Lacking in Current Park System 
• City cannot develop connectivity soon enough. 
• CS has a well‐defined edge now – concern that we must maintain that rural edge by focusing on 

infill opportunities. 
• Bicycling is an afterthought. There are not safe crossings for cyclists. Demanding more from 

developers would be proactive. 

48



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 15 of 18 

• Need to focus on developing a network to hold the community together. 
Other 
• Park initiative between Grimes and Brazos County for a 10,000‐acre park facility.  
• An arterial intersecting a freeway, where Home Depot went in, is encroaching upon the 

floodplain – the thoroughfare plan needs to respect the greenway system. 
• CS has a sister city (Bryan), and they don’t always play well together. CS has been proactive in 

the past, and citizens would like them to go to the next level. 
• Need to decide what type of economic development they want.  
• Parks are as fundamental as streets and infrastructure. 

 
TRANSPORTATION 

Bike/Pedestrian/Transit Issues and Improvements 
• Roads are not wide enough to cycle safely, and intersections are not safe. 
• Major challenges crossing over Bypass because bridges are not bike friendly. 
• Bicycle routes needed for park‐to‐park recreation; however, there is a need for those who are 

using it to go to work. 
• Need to accommodate two types of users of bike facilities: those that use roadways/paths to 

commute to destinations and those that use paths/trails for recreational purposes. 
• Access roads on Bypass were usable before they were improved (could ride on shoulder), now 

there are curbs so you can’t ride your bike. 
• Need bike paths that are separate from both cars and pedestrians. 
• Transportation rights‐of‐ways should include roads, bicycle lanes and sidewalks. 
• Also need to account for school kids; right now bicyclists are using the sidewalks not the bike 

lanes because they are not safe. 
• Crossing Texas Avenue by bike is a safety issue because there is car recognition but no bike 

recognition at the traffic light. 
• On campus the underpass is wonderful – the old overpass didn’t work. 
• Public transportation is a good solution (light rail, buses). 
• General public can ride the TAMU transit system, but does it go where they need to go? 
• There are a lot of bikers that use the east Bypass, and therefore there is an opportunity for bike 

connections to Wolf Pen Creek. 
• Need good community planning so kids can walk/bike to the park, school. 
• Bikeway system is relatively good – as an alternative transportation system. 
• The bikes still have to compete with cars to get across Texas and University to get to campus. 
• George Bush and Wellborn – TxDOT does have funds to put in a grade separation eventually for 

bikes/pedestrians. Everything lags behind 10‐15 years before projects hit the ground. 
• Bikes need to abide by traffic rules. 
• Northgate is beginning to make progress for pedestrian traffic. 
Roadway/Intersection Improvements 
• Lack of north/south corridors. 

49



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 16 of 18 

• Longmire Drive and Rock Prairie. 
• Deacon and Longmire (waiting at the lights when there are no cars). 
• Synchronization of lights on University, Texas Avenue. 
• Munson, Dartworth, Harvey – could be a great pedestrian and thoroughfare corridor. 
• Wellborn Road. 
• Rock Prairie and Wellborn Road. 
• Have proposed a project to the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) to interconnect 

signals on state system – this will happen in the coming years. 
• Southwest Parkway at the Bypass – need for traffic signalization here, going east you have a 

traffic light at Dartmouth. 
• Late at night lights should go to blinking red. 
• Overgrown trees on sidewalks forces people to walk in streets. 
• Lincoln – there are bike lanes; however, when you get to the duplexes it stops because of parking, 

and then starts again.  There is no serious consideration for bike lanes. 
• Intersections are really a problem for bikes; bike boxes elsewhere in country allow bikes to make 

a left turn. 
• Rock Prairie and Highway 6. 
• Going north to Rock Prairie, traffic backs up. 
• Stonebrook at Rock Prairie (traffic, turning movements and intersection). 
• Emerald Forest and Highway 6. 
• Traffic on Munson, result of a system that lacks north/south roadways to travel. 
• 2818 by the high school – getting kids safely across (no medians, crosswalks). 
• Holleman and Texas Avenue. 
• Grade separation at 2818 and railroad will be implemented next December. 
• College Station ISD: getting into neighborhoods is not a problem, coming out of the 

neighborhoods is difficult. Up to 10% of the budget can be used for hazardous conditions (for 
example, Barron Road – two schools on Barron and kids cannot cross the road). Need to see more 
connectivity. 

• Nantucket – difficult to pick up kids because of high‐speed traffic. 
• Munson – speed – it’s a cut‐through. 
• Forest Bridge School on Barron Road is backed up because parents drop off kids (they can’t walk 

to school due to traffic). 
• All development inhibits connectivity – still only three to four ways north‐south and three to four 

ways east‐west. Limited alternatives, therefore there is congestion. Every street should be a minor 
collector with sidewalks. 

• Fine and good for new development but not for older neighborhoods. Should be able to come 
home and not feel intruded upon by traffic. Kids should be able to play in the front yards – 
it’s wrong to take a neighborhood that’s been there 20‐25 years and seek connectivity options. 

• Community attitude has always been reactive not proactive. Traffic plan should be in place well 
in advance including the ETJ. Plan should be updated every five years – 10 years is not enough. 
We have not had a viable plan/system for some time. Development is way ahead of the City’s 

50



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 17 of 18 

thought process. One of the key ways a city can encourage/discourage growth is through a 
transportation plan. 

• Did put in traffic calming along Dexter that works. 
• Traffic enforcement by the Police Department is good. 
• City uses quality traffic signal system equipment. 
Thoroughfare Plan 
• Major sections of the thoroughfare plan have been changed because of development. 
• Thoroughfare plan is being implemented now. 
• The thoroughfare plan establishes an overall picture, unfortunately it changes because of 

development. 
• Shouldn’t negotiate splitting roads with developers, need to preserve right‐of‐way. 
• Include a strong statement that City and City Council cannot ignore thoroughfares on plan. 
Land Use and Transportation Planning 
• Cut‐through traffic through older neighborhoods is a problem. 
• Don’t want new thoroughfares cutting through neighborhoods, need to preserve neighborhood 

integrity. 
• Design the community to minimize reliance on automobile to get everywhere – i.e., through 

mixed‐use developments. 
• Mixed‐use developments – people don’t believe it until it is there, so maybe make one corridor a 

pilot, identify a target area and try to demonstrate that it works.  One potential area could include 
the Wolf Pen Creek and Harvey Road area.  Look at transit possibilities (i.e., like Portland street 
car or light rail, currently buses are packed, they leave people behind because they are so full). 

• CS has done a good job with Wolf Pen Creek corridor. 
• Not going to have the mixed‐use development if you attract the franchises, with parking lots out 

front.  European cities have plazas; however, if you don’t restrict franchises this won’t happen. 
• Where major roads come together there is pressure for commercial development – this generates 

pollutants that go into drainage system. Old thoroughfare plan did not take into account natural 
constraints. The new plan should take into account natural constraints, and new intersections 
should be located away from floodplain. 

• CS has grown and has had to rely on arterials that are now inadequate. Munson‐Dartmouth was 
designed to discourage cut‐through traffic but it doesn’t do that. Need a plan to allow for future 
traffic loads. Collectors are serving as arterials. Should be on a half‐mile grid. People need to 
know that there’s a 200‐foot right‐of‐way. Barron Road is a good example – the right‐of‐way 
should have been bought years ago.  

Other 
• Not interested in traveling faster in the city. University near Northgate can have narrower lanes, 

with a median, and everyone’s quality of life would go up.  The number of cars there does dictate 
quality of life. 

• Need transportation planning for special events.  Looking for creative ways to handle traffic 
because of football games and other special events. 

• No plans to add more on‐campus housing – more students are going to be living off campus and 
we need to accommodate them. 

51



 

Focus Group Summary (October 2006)  Page 18 of 18 

• Converting Foxfire Drive into a collector will redefine the neighborhood – making the street 
larger than what it should be changes the character of the neighborhood. 

• Should include question about bicycle usage on community survey. 
• Community relies heavily on the comprehensive plan with a 10‐year horizon. Could we think in 

a 30‐year horizon for a traffic plan? 
• The right‐of‐way on 2818 shows tremendous foresight but now may not be needed because it was 

planned as a freeway, but that is no longer where we need a freeway. 2818 is one of the few 
streets where you can get somewhere through town.  

• Expansion on the Bypass will be to six lanes instead of four and the widened bridges out near the 
mall. The ramps will change from a diamond pattern to an “X” pattern.  

• Is TAMU transit just for students, or is it open to anyone who wants to go to the University or the 
mall? Brazos Valley Transit does a lot of coordination that people do not see. They have nine 
buses now that are shared between B‐CS – could use 30 buses because of the large apartment 
complexes going in.  

• The railroad is an asset. Lots of big development going in. Railroad should stay. 
• Transportation system is designed to fail twice a day. 
• Older schools are located off major routes; new schools have access from a major road, which 

creates traffic flow problems. Access needs to be far enough off the roads that queues do not back 
up into traffic. 

• Rock Prairie Road widening is good. 
• Kudos on working with Bryan and TxDOT for the timing of the lights to move people through 

morning commutes. 
• South of Olson Field – City has put in two or three roads to funnel traffic off George Bush –

it helps alleviate backup onto George Bush.  
• We have exceptional City staff, but the difficulty is using staff in processing rather than planning. 

Not fully utilizing the talent of the staff. 
• The City should work with other communities to find examples of where traffic issues have been 

successfully addressed in other places. 
 

52



 

November 20, 2006 
Consent Agenda Item 

2006 Gainsharing Distribution 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on the 2006 Gainsharing 
Distribution. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the 2006 gainsharing distribution to 
eligible employees.   
 
Summary:  Gainsharing is a program designed to share with the employees the successes 
of being efficient, highly productive, innovative and creative.  
 
Gainsharing is a component of the City’s compensation system and is a tool to encourage 
employees to find ways to reduce cost and generate budget savings. The savings are then 
shared throughout the City and with the employees. This is the tenth year of the 
Gainsharing program. 
 
The gainsharing distribution is determined by calculating the unexpended funds in the FY06 
operating budgets. This total is then reduced by items called deferrals that are not true 
gains. Deferrals reflect funds that were not expended in FY06 due to the delay in the 
completion of projects to FY07. The total of the FY06 true savings is $737,952. 
 
Two thirds of the total savings, $491,968, remains in the fund in which the savings was 
realized and will be used to offset costs to the City and citizens in future years. 
Approximately one third, $245,984, is available for the gainsharing distribution to 
employees. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: The total amount proposed to be distributed to 700 
eligible regular full-time and regular part-time employees for gainsharing is $245,984. The 
net gainsharing amount per employee is $288 before taxes and retirement. The City’s cost 
per employee is $351 ($288 plus $73 for the City’s portion of retirement and social security 
expenses).  
 
A budget amendment will be brought to Council in the near future to provide the budget 
appropriation for this expenditure.  
 
Attachments: None.  
 

53



 

 

November 20, 2006 
Consent Agenda 

Resolution Establishing a Joint Bryan/College Station Youth Commission 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Olivia Burnside, Chief Information Officer                       
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the approval of 
a resolution establishing a joint Bryan/College Station Youth Commission.   
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the resolution establishing a joint 
Bryan/College Station Youth Commission.     
 
Summary: This idea was first introduced to City Council by TAMU students in April 2006.          
The item was discussed at a City Council Workshop on July 27, 2006 when staff presented a 
timeline for the possible creation of a Bryan/College Station Youth Commission.  Council 
directed staff to move forward with the process of implementing a Youth Commission. 
 
The goals and objectives of the Youth Commission are to develop an alliance among youth, 
youth service agencies, city government, schools, and the community and to advise on how 
to solve the problems affecting the youth of the community.  Furthermore, the Youth 
Commission will work towards unifying the youth of Bryan and College Station into a 
positive force for the good of both communities. 
 
A planning steering committee made up of Mike Mullen, City of College Station, Ronnie 
Jackson, City of Bryan and Becky Davis, United Way, with input from youth in both cities, 
did the following: 
        

§ Set up the initial structure modeled after the one in Lubbock, Texas. 
§ Determined that this structure needs to be in place prior to recruiting 

members  January- August 2007  
§ Determined that participation should include students from both cities 

and adults representing various stakeholders. 
 

The City of Bryan City Council approved a like resolution at their November 14, 2006 
meeting. 
  
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   N/A  
 
Attachments:  
Resolution establishing the joint Bryan/College Station Youth Commission 
 
 
 

54



RESOLUTION NO._________________ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, 
APPROVING THE ESTABLISHMENT OF A BRYAN/COLLEGE STATION 
YOUTH COMMISSION; PROVIDING AN OPPORTUNITY FOR YOUTH OF 
BOTH THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION AND THE CITY OF BRYAN, 
TEXAS, TO WORK TOGETHER TO PROVIDE INPUT AND FEEDBACK TO 
BOTH CITY COUNCILS ON ISSUES AFFECTING YOUTH; AND 
ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, the youth of the cities of Bryan and College Station are important and 
valuable parts of the two communities with ideas and perspectives that offer unique 
insight into the quality of life of both cities; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City Councils and City administrators of the cities of Bryan and College 
Station make decisions routinely that affect the youth in our communities; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of College Station, in cooperation with the City 
of Bryan City Council, wishes to provide the youth of Bryan and College Station an 
opportunity and a vehicle to respond to and provide input into the decisions and policies 
that are made that affect young persons; and,  
 
WHEREAS, it is the opinion of the City Council of College Station that the best interests 
of the citizens of the two cities would be served by establishing a Bryan/College Station 
Youth Commission; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby approves the establishment of a 

Bryan/College Station Youth Commission, (the “Youth Commission”) in 
cooperation with the City of Bryan. The goals and objectives of the Youth 
Commission are to develop an alliance among youth, youth service 
agencies, city government, schools, and the community and to advise on 
how to solve the problems affecting the youth of the community. 
Furthermore, the Youth Commission will work towards unifying the youth 
of Bryan and College Station into a positive force for the good of both 
communities. 

 
PART 2: The City Council hereby authorizes the Youth Commission to act as an 

advisory committee to the Mayor and City Council of College Station on 
youth issues.  

 
PART 3: That the Youth Commission shall consist of twenty-four (24) student 

members in high school grades 9 through 12.  They will be representatives 
of the Bryan and College Station area students, and no more than fifty 
percent (50%) of the Youth Commission members may come from the 
same city. In addition to the twenty-four (24) student members, there will 
be adult advisors to the Youth Commission made up of city-staff liaisons, 
school personnel and community leaders serving as ex-officio members. 
Terms of office will be for two years for both teens and adults.  

 

55



RESOLUTION NO. ______________      Page 2 
 
 
PART 4: That the Youth Commission shall select a Youth Council consisting of a 

Chair, Co-chair, two secretaries, a public relations representative, a 
treasurer and a historian from among the membership at its initial meeting. 
Said officers shall serve for one (1) year or until such time as their 
successors are appointed. 

 
PART 5: That an annual report shall be presented by the Chair of the Youth 

Commission to the Mayors and City Councils of both cities concerning the 
Youth Commission’s interaction, activities and progress as related to its 
established purpose. 

 
PART 6: This resolution shall be effective immediately upon and after its adoption. 
 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 20th day of November, A.D. 2006 
 
 
ATTEST:     APPROVE: 
 
 
____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary   Ron Silvia, Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson

VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  
_____________________________ 
City Attorney 
 

56



 

November 20, 2006 
Consent Agenda Item 

The Memorial for all Veterans of the Brazos Valley Budget and Funding Agreement 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on approving the budget of 
the Memorial for all Veterans of the Brazos Valley; and presentation, possible action and 
discussion on a funding agreement between the City of College Station and the Memorial for 
all Veterans of the Brazos Valley for FY07 in the amount of $50,000. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the Memorial for All Veterans of the 
Brazos Valley budget and the funding agreement for FY07.   
 
Summary:  As part of the 2006-2007 budget process the City Council approved funding for 
the Memorial for all Veterans of the Brazos Valley in the amount of $50,000.  The funds will 
be used for the construction of the Louis Lynn Stuart Pathway in Veteran’s Park. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The funds for this agreement are budgeted and available 
in the 2006-2007 Hotel Tax Fund Budget.   
 
State law requires that the City Council adopt the budget of any organization that is to be 
funded through the Hotel Tax Fund.     
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Funding Agreement and budget for the Memorial for all Veterans of the Brazos Valley 
(budget is on page 19 of the attachment)  

 

57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



 

November 20, 2006 
Consent Agenda 

Authorize Brazos County Appraisal District Expenditures 
 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion to authorize the 
expenditures for the Brazos County Appraisal District in the amount of $185,217 pursuant 
to the Property Tax Code 6.06D 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the expenditures in the amount of 
$185,217 to the Brazos County Appraisal District. 
 
Summary:  Chapter 6.01 of the Property Tax Code calls for an appraisal district to be 
established in each county.  The district is responsible for appraising property in the district 
for ad valorem taxes purposes of each taxing unit that imposes ad valorem taxes in the 
district.  Chapter 6.06 (d) stipulates how the funding is allocated: “each taxing unit 
participating in the district is allocated a portion of the amount of the budget equal to the 
proportion that the total dollar amount of property taxes imposed in the district by the unit 
for the tax year in which the budget proposals is prepared bears to the sum of the total 
amount of property taxes imposed in the district by each participating unit for that year.”   
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds are available and budgeted in the General Fund, 
Finance Administration Budget.  Payments are made in four equal payments made at the 
end of each calendar quarter.   
 
Attachments: none 
 
 
 

77



 

 

November 20, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Church Avenue Phase II Needs Resolution 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution 
determining the public necessity to acquire easement interests for the Church Avenue Phase 
II Project. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the resolution. 
 
 
Summary: Additional easement space is required for public utilities, access, landscape, 
and construction of those improvements along Church Avenue between College Main and 
Nagle. The design will be complete by the end of November. Pending easement acquisition, 
the anticipated construction start is May 2007.  
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: The budget for the Church Avenue Phase II Project is 
$800,000.  Funding for this project is from the 2003 general obligation bond fund.  Design 
costs for the project are $85,000.  The cost for purchasing the easements is unknown at 
this time. 
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Needs Resolution 
2. Exhibits A – Exhibits 1-23 
3. Location Map 

 
 
 

78



 

 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING NEED 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO.      
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, RELATING TO: (1) THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY TO INITIATE, COMPLETE, 
AND ACQUIRE, BY PURCHASE OR CONDEMNATION, EXCLUSIVE PERMANENT 
PUBLIC ACCESS, PUBLIC UTILITY, AND LANDSCAPING EASEMENTS, AND 
RELATED TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION EASEMENTS IN CERTAIN PROPERTY FOR 
THE CHURCH AVENUE PHASE II PROJECT; (2) A DECLARATION THAT PUBLIC 
NECESSITY EXISTS FOR THE CITY TO ACQUIRE SUCH EASEMENTS, THROUGH 
PURCHASE OR CONDEMNATION; AND (3) ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR THE 
ACQUISITION OF THE EASEMENT INTERESTS IN THE PROPERTY. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas (“City”) is a home rule municipality duly 
incorporated and chartered under the Constitution and laws of Texas; and   
 
WHEREAS, the City owns, operates, constructs, repairs and maintains a city roadway system as 
a public service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s ownership, operation, construction, repair, and maintenance of the city 
roadway system is a benefit to the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City, through a condemnation proceeding, may exercise the power of eminent 
domain to acquire property in order to carry out the ownership, operation, construction, repair, 
and maintenance of its street system pursuant to Chapter 251 of the Texas Local Government 
Code, Chapter 21 of the Texas Property Code, and Article II of the City’s Charter; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is engaged in the following project regarding improvements to Church 
Avenue, Phase II including the rehabilitation of Church Avenue, relocation of water and sanitary 
sewer lines , storm drainage and sidewalks, between College Main and Nagle Street in College 
Station, Texas (the “Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City determines that the best interests and needs of the public, including the 
health, safety and welfare of the public, require that the City improve Church Avenue between 
College Main and Nagle Street, through the City’s acquisition, by purchase or condemnation 
proceeding, of those easements for public access, public utilities, and landscaping, as well as 
related temporary construction easements, as provided in Exhibits 1 through 23, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference for all purposes (the “Easements”); now, therefore; 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, hereby officially 

determines that there is a public necessity for the Easements, and the public welfare 
and convenience will be served by the acquisition of the Easements. 

 
PART 2: That the City Manager is hereby authorized to contract, on behalf of the City of 

College Station, with a professional appraiser for the appraisal services, with a 
professional real estate agent to act as a Land Agent for the City and with attorneys 
for preparation of title opinions needed by the City from time to time in connection 
with acquisition of the Easements. 

 

79



 

 

PART 3: That the City’s Land Agent or other staff appraiser is hereby authorized and directed 
to examine the independent appraisal reports as they are submitted to the City  to 
determine whether said appraisal reports are supported by sufficient data.  Based 
upon such examination of said appraisal reports, the Land Agent or other staff 
appraiser shall make a recommendation to the City Manager as to the establishment 
and approval of the amount of the just compensation for the Easements. 

 
PART 4: After consideration of said recommendation, the City Manager shall establish and 

approve the amount determined for acquisition of the Easements. 
 
PART 5: Upon establishment and approval by the City Manager of the amount of just 

compensation for the acquisition of the Easements, the City’s Land Agent or other 
staff appraiser is authorized to communicate a written offer to the property owners for 
the acquisition of an easement interest at the full amount determined and established 
to be just compensation therefore and to negotiate with said owners on behalf of the 
City. 

 
PART 6: That the Mayor after approval by City Council, or the City Manager as delegated, is 

hereby authorized to execute all documents necessary to acquire said the Easements 
for the Project, on behalf of the City of College Station. 

 
PART 7: That, if necessary, and should a property owner fail to accept a bona fide, good faith 

offer from the City to purchase the required Easement, City representatives shall have 
the authority to initiate and complete condemnation proceedings against said owner, 
in order to acquire through condemnation all required property interests and title 
regarding such property. 

 
PART 8: That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized to sell any such surplus 

improvements, or order the demolition thereof, if any, located on the real property 
acquired in connection with this Project. 

 
PART 9: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
 
ADOPTED this 20th day of November, A.D. 2006. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

       
City Attorney 
 
 

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



 

November 20, 2006 
Consent Agenda Item # 

College Main Sidewalks Project Needs Resolution 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion to approve a Needs 
Resolution for Public Access Easements for the College Main Sidewalks Project. The 
easements are along the east and west side of College Main between Cross and Cherry 
Streets. 
 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval of the Needs Resolution for the Public 
Access Easements. 
 
 
Summary: This item is for the approval of a Needs Resolution for Public Access Easements 
in order to construct sidewalks along College Main between Cross and Cherry Streets in 
order to improve pedestrian safety and mobility in the Northgate area. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: The funding for this project is from Community 
Development Block Grant funds.  The budget for the College Main Sidewalks is $87,110.00.  
The cost of purchasing the easements is unknown at this time. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Needs Resolution  

2. Exhibit A 

3. Location Map of College Main Sidewalks Project 

129



 
RESOLUTION DETERMINING NEED 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO.      
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, RELATING TO: (1) THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY TO INITIATE, COMPLETE, 
AND ACQUIRE, BY PURCHASE OR CONDEMNATION, EXCLUSIVE PERMANENT 
PUBLIC ACCESS EASEMENTS IN CERTAIN PROPERTY FOR THE COLLEGE MAIN 
SIDEWALKS PROJECT; (2) A DECLARATION THAT PUBLIC NECESSITY EXISTS FOR 
THE CITY TO ACQUIRE SUCH EASEMENTS, THROUGH PURCHASE OR 
CONDEMNATION; AND (3) ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR THE ACQUISITION 
OF THE EASEMENT INTERESTS IN THE PROPERTY. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas (“City”) is a home rule municipality duly 
incorporated and chartered under the Constitution and laws of Texas; and   
 
WHEREAS, the City owns, operates, constructs, repairs and maintains a city roadway system as 
a public service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s ownership, operation, construction, repair, and maintenance of the city 
roadway system is a benefit to the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City, through a condemnation proceeding, may exercise the power of eminent 
domain to acquire property in order to carry out the ownership, operation, construction, repair, 
and maintenance of its street system pursuant to Chapter 251 of the Texas Local Government 
Code, Chapter 21 of the Texas Property Code, and Article II of the City’s Charter; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is engaged in the following project regarding improvements to College 
Main Street including the construction of  sidewalks on the east and west side of College Main 
between Cross Street and Cherry Street in College Station, Texas (the “Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City determines that the best interests and needs of the public, including the 
health, safety and welfare of the public, require that the City improve College Main  through the 
City’s acquisition, by purchase or condemnation proceeding, of those easements for public 
access, as provided in Exhibits 1 through 8 attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference 
for all purposes (the “Easements”); now, therefore; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, hereby officially 

determines that there is a public necessity for the Easements, and the public welfare 
and convenience will be served by the acquisition of the Easements to improve 
pedestrian safety and mobility in the Northgate area of the City. 

 
PART 2: That the City Manager is hereby authorized to contract, on behalf of the City of 

College Station, with a professional appraiser for the appraisal services, with a 
professional real estate agent to act as a Land Agent for the City and with attorneys 
for preparation of title opinions needed by the City from time to time in connection 
with acquisition of the Easements. 

 

130



ORDINANCE NO. ____________________      Page 2 
 
 
PART 3: That the City’s Land Agent or other staff appraiser is hereby authorized and directed 

to examine the independent appraisal reports as they are submitted to the City  to 
determine whether said appraisal reports are supported by sufficient data.  Based 
upon such examination of said appraisal reports, the Land Agent or other staff 
appraiser shall make a recommendation to the City Manager as to the establishment 
and approval of the amount of the just compensation for the Easements. 

 
PART 4: After consideration of said recommendation, the City Manager shall establish and 

approve the amount determined for acquisition of the Easements. 
 
PART 5: Upon establishment and approval by the City Manager of the amount of just 

compensation for the acquisition of the Easements, the City’s Land Agent or other 
staff appraiser is authorized to communicate a written offer to the property owners for 
the acquisition of an easement interest at the full amount determined and established 
to be just compensation therefor and to negotiate with said owners on behalf of the 
City. 

 
PART 6: That the Mayor after approval by City Council, or the City Manager as delegated, is 

hereby authorized to execute all documents necessary to acquire the said Easements 
for the Project, on behalf of the City of College Station. 

 
PART 7: That, if necessary, and should a property owner fail to accept a bona fide, good faith 

offer from the City to purchase the required Easement, City representatives shall have 
the authority to initiate and complete condemnation proceedings against said owner, 
in order to acquire through condemnation all required property interests and title 
regarding such property. 

 
PART 8: That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized to sell any such surplus 

improvements, or order the demolition thereof, if any, located on the real property 
acquired in connection with this Project. 

 
PART 9: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
 
ADOPTED this 20th day of November, A.D. 2006. 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

      
City Attorney 

131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



College Main

Tauber St

Ch
er

ry
 S

t

Lo
uis

e A
ve

J
149



 

 

November 20, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Spring Creek Substation Construction  
Bid No. 06-138 

 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: David Massey Director of Electric Utilities                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a 
resolution awarding Bid No 06-138 to Gulf States Inc for construction of Spring Creek 
Substation in the amount of $3,642, 800. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends award of Bid No 06-138 to the lowest responsible 
bidder, Gulf States Inc.  
 
 
Summary: On October 6, 2006 three bids were received in response to Bid No 06-138 for 
the construction of a new electrical substation, Spring Creek Substation located in the 
Spring Creek Corporate Campus Business Park on Hwy 6 South. The bids were as follows. 
 
   Gulf States Inc.  $3,642,800.00 
   E. P. Breaux Electrical $3,838,634.40 
   ECP Tech Services Inc. $4,777,364.58 
    
 
This electrical station is needed to provide electrical capacity to the City of College Station 
customers.  Initial anticipated project cost is $5,307,570 that includes City furnished 
material. Future addition of electrical equipment is planned for in subsequent years in order 
to meet electrical load growth. Gulf States Inc submitted the low bid meeting specifications. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: This project is budgeted as part of the FY07 Electric 
Capital Improvements Budget. Funding for the project is budgeted in the Electric Utility 
Capital Improvement Projects Fund. 
 
 
 
Attachments: 1. Resolution 
    2. Bid Tabulation 
    3. Location Map 
 
 
 

150



RESOLUTION NO._______________ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, APPROVING A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT FOR THE SPRING CREEK 
SUBSTATION PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING THE EXPENDITURE OF FUNDS. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas, solicited bids for the construction phase of the 
Spring Creek Substation Project; and 
 
WHEREAS, the selection of Gulf States, Inc., is being recommended as the lowest responsible 
bidder for the construction services related to Spring Creek Substation; now, therefore,  
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City Council hereby finds that Gulf States, Inc., is the lowest 

responsible bidder. 
 
PART 2: That the City Council hereby approves the contract with Gulf States, Inc., 

for $3,642,800  for the labor, materials and equipment required for the 
improvements related the Spring Creek Substation Project. 

  
PART 3: That the funding for this Contract shall be as budgeted from the Capital 

Improvement Fund, Electric Department, in the amount of $3,642,800. 
 

PART 4: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
ADOPTED this    day of      , A.D. 2006. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
              
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
 
      
City Attorney 
 

151



McCord Engineering, Inc. 11/3/2006
P.O. Box 10047
College Station, Texas 77842

Group Group Description Gulf States Breaux ECP

A Structures 681,548.33 558,341.00 688,045.00

B Three Pole Gang Operated Air Break Switches 
and Accessories 79,682.16 87,600.00 90,258.00

C Surge Arresters 20,740.56 21,300.00 23,130.00
D Single Pole Disconnect Switches 60,811.92 70,560.00 98,280.00
E 145 kV Circuit Switchers and Circuit Breakers 274,181.29 265,500.00 658,879.00
F 15 kV Substation Circuit Breakers 8,586.80 20,000.00 205,104.00
G Meters, Relays, and Instrument Transformers 384,504.83 321,460.00 424,313.00
H Transformer 2,824.60 12,250.00 442,112.00

J Communications and Supervisory Control 
Equipment 92,389.20 94,700.00 100,799.00

K Conduit, Cabling, and Wiring Modifications 272,407.02 186,265.00 76,403.00
L Foundations 243,655.62 314,400.00 343,096.00
M Site Preparation 564,018.29 666,790.00 501,735.00
N Pre-Fabricated Wall 246,430.63 235,000.00 251,363.00
P Pre-Assembled Substation Control Enclosure 176,314.09 119,500.00 250,000.00
Q Station Grounding 157,204.51 116,557.00 120,384.58

R Testing/Commissioning of Relays and 
Equipment 72,461.97 230,000.00 63,870.00

S Stand-by Generator and Automatic Transfer 
Switch 40,966.36 30,000.00 55,909.00

T Transmission Construction Units 57,207.85 19,064.00 40,395.30
U Substation Service 9,278.09 10,932.00 18,932.10
V Temporary Silt Fence Removal 4,498.62 11,500.00 6,480.00
W Substation Oil Containment 10,553.95 14,850.00 14,245.00
X Distribution Underground Construction Units 104,159.03 334,865.40 195,861.60
Y Remote End Relay Modifications 51,391.48 80,000.00 34,200.00
AL Substation Area Lighting 26,982.80 17,200.00 73,570.00

3,642,800.00 3,838,634.40 4,777,364.58

1,664,770.00 1,664,770.00 1,664,770.00

5,307,570.00 5,503,404.40 6,442,134.58
Z Charges for Additions or Modifications 43,750.00 98,500.00 87,500.00

5,351,320.00 5,601,904.40 6,529,634.58

Shading denotes bid withdrawn.

GRAND TOTAL BID

FINAL BID SUMMARY

SPRING CREEK SUBSTATION CONSTRUCTION

TOTAL BONDED BID

Subtotal Bid (Note: This amount plus OFM to be bonded)

Total Owner-Furnished Materials

152



153



 

NEW COVERSHEET FORMAT EXAMPLE 1 

November 20, 2006 
Consent Agenda Item # 

Change Order Electric System Right-of-Way Clearing  
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: David Massey, Director of College Station Utilities Electric Department                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on a Change Order to 
Contract #05-019 for Electric System Right-of-Way Clearing and Tree Trimming Contract 
with Asplundh Tree Expert Company in the amount of $75,114.75 
 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval of Change Order in the amount of 
$75,114.75 
 
 
Summary:  The original contract with Asplundh Tree Expert Company was approved by 
Council on February 24, 2005 and renewed on February 23, 2006 for the second year.  The 
bid requested firm prices for tree trimming for a three year period to be awarded annually.  
We are currently completing the second year of trimming.  This change order in the amount 
of $75,114.25 is to cover tree trimming expenses for two electric power circuits that will be 
trimmed and paid for in the 2006/07 contract year. 
 
In the 2005/06 contract year, the contractor was scheduled to trim seven (7) of our electric 
power circuits.  Due to the busy Hurricane season in 2005 we were limited to the crews 
availability and only five (5) of the electric power circuits were trimmed and paid for in the 
2005/06 contract year.  Approved Purchase order amount for 2005/06 contract year was 
$339,900.00, amount paid out was $261,614.25 
 
In the 2006/07 contract year the contractor was scheduled to trim seven (7) electric power 
circuits.  Due to availability of crews the additional two (2)  electric power circuits not 
trimmed in the 2005/06 system year will also be trimmed and the contractor will be 
completing the system electric power circuit trimming ahead of schedule.  Approved 
Purchase order amount for 2006/07 was $425,400.00, amount to be paid with the change 
order approval will be $500,514.75 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   Funds are available in the Electric Division Operating 
Budget.   
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1 Change order 
 
 
 

154



Phl281-839-1515 

the electric power circuits were trimmed and paid for in the 2005106 contract year. 
In 2006-07 contract year the contractor was scheduled to trim seven (7) of our electric power circuits. Due to 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT AMOUNT 
Change Order No. 1 $75,114.75 17.657 % of Original Contract Amount 
REVISED CONTRACT AMOUNT $500,514.75 

ORIGINAL CONTRACT TIME 365 Days 
Change Order No. 1 Time Reduction 90 Days 
REVISED CONTRACT TIME Days 

ORIGINAL SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION DATE Feb. 28,2007 
REVISED SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION DATE Dec. 1,2006 

ClTY ATTORNEY 

ClTY MANAGER 

155



 

NEW COVERSHEET FORMAT EXAMPLE 1 

November 20, 2006 
Consent Agenda Item # 

Electric System Right-of-Way Clearing 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: David Massey, Director of College Station Utilities Electric Department                          
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on renewal of Bid #05-41, 
Contract #05-019 for Electric System Right-of-Way Clearing and Tree Trimming Contract 
award to Asplundh Tree Expert Company for $384,900.00 for the third year.   
 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends renewal of bid with Asplundh Tree Expert 
Company. 
 
 
Summary:   This contract was approved by Council on February 24, 2005 and renewed for 
the second year on February 23, 2006.  The bid requested firm pricing for three years, to be 
awarded annually.  The contract provides for renewals based on acceptable performance 
during the current contract year.  The performance has been acceptable.  Upon completion 
of trimming the 2006/07 electric power circuits we will have completed our system trimming 
cycle in a three (3) year period.  Standard electric utility practices have recommended a 
three (3) year system trimming cycle.  Because of our proactive approach to overhead line 
clearance maintenance, wind related electrical outages are kept to a minimum.  This 
program also helps control outages due to tree dwelling animals contacting power lines. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   Funds are available in the Electric Division Operating 
Budget.   
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1 Renewal letter 
2 System Tracking Sheet 

 
 
 

156



CITY OF COLLEGE STATION 
the he& ofthe Research Val4 

ATTN: James Greg Perry 
Asplundh Tree Expert Company 
6730 Independent BLVD #2 
Baytown TX 77521 

RE: Renewal--Bid #05-41 Contract #05-019 
Electric System Row Clearing and Tree Trimming 

Dear Mr. Perry: 

The City of College Station appreciates the services provided by Asplundh Tree Expert Company 
this past year. We would like to exercise our option to renew the above referenced agreement for 
the term of December lSt, 2006 through November 3oth, 2007 for the total PO amount of 
$384,900.00. 

If this meets with your company's approval, please complete this renewal agreement (including 
notarization), and return it no later than Tuesday, October 3 lSt, 2006. We will then issue your 
company a new purchase order effective 12/1/06 through 1 1/30/07. 

Should you have any questions, please call me at (979) 764-3558. 

Sincerely, 

Alan Degelman 
Buyer 

Attachment 

1'0 f30x 0060 
1 101 1 esdz \\-cnue 

College Station, '1'1 '7841 

157



RENEWAL ACCEPTANCE 

By signing herewith, I acknowledge and agree to renew contract #05-019, for the annual 
agreement, Electric System Row Clearing and Tree Trimming in accordance with all terms and 
conditions previously agreed to and accepted. 

I understand this renewal term will be for the period beginning 12/1/06 through 1 1/30/07 for the 
bid amount of $384,900.00. 

ASPLUNDH TREE EXPERT CO. 

AUTHO D PRESENTATIVE v - 
CIT'Y OHCOLLEGE STATION 

Ron Silvia, Mayor DATE 

ATTEST: 

Connie Hooks, City Secretary DATE 

APPROVED: 

Glenn D. Brown, City Manager DATE 

DATE 

Chief Financial Officer DATE 

158



STATE OF TEXAS CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

COUNTY OF '%- 

This instrument was acknowledged on the 2 day of u&e-MhCe ,2006, 

in hisher capacity as 5 \ L 9 f ~ g  ~\DP of 

, a TEXAS Corporation, on behalf of said corporation. 

STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF BRAZOS 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 

This instrument was acknowledged on the day of ,2006, 

by Ron Silvia, in his capacity as Mayor of the City of College Station, a Texas 

home-rule municipality, on behalf of said municipality. 

Notary Public in and for the 
State of Texas 

159



 10-27-06

Asplundh Tree Expert Co 
                                                             

 2005 / 06 Proposed Circuit Trimming
Circuit Name

1 Southgate $46,500.00 Completed
2 Welsh North $29,500.00 Completed
3 Carter's Grove $29,000.00 Completed
4 Windwood $60,500.00 Completed
5 Raintree $35,000.00 Completed
6 College Hills $37,000.00 Moved to 2006/07
7 Welsh South $46,000.00 Moved to 2006/07
8 Misc Hourly* $56,400.00 $61,114.25

2005/06 Subtotal $339,900.00  

PO #050591 amount Mar. 1, 05 to Feb 28, 06  $339,900, paid out $261,614.25
 

2006 / 07 Proposed Circuit Trimming 
1 Rio Grande $30,500.00 Completed
2 Longmire $40,000.00 Completed
3 Shenandoah $58,500.00 Completed
4 Rock Prairie $47,500.00 Completed
5 Mile Drive $39,000.00 Completed
6 Crystal Park $58,500.00 Completed
7 Woodcreek $95,000.00 Completed
8 Misc Hourly* $56,400.00 $48,514.25

2006/07 Subtotal $425,400.00   
Additional Feeder from 2005 /06

9 College Hills $37,000.00 Moved to 2006/07
10 Welsh South $46,000.00 Moved to 2006/07

Total $508,400.00

PO #060584 Amount to be paid out Mar 1, 06 to Completion, $500,514.25  
  

 2007 / 08 Proposed Circuit Trimming
1 Northgate/TX North $74,000.00
2 2F $27,500.00
3 East Bypass $18,500.00
4 Holleman $40,500.00
5 Langford $42,000.00
6 Bee Creek/Dartmouth $26,500.00
7 Wellborn $37,500.00
8 Industrial/Pebble $36,500.00
9 Hwy 40/Castlegate $25,500.00

10 Misc Hourly* $56,400.00
2007 Subtotal $384,900.00

GRAND TOTAL $1,150,200.00

160



 

November 20, 2006  
Consent Agenda  

Tejas Medical Waste Hauling Franchise First Reading 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Olivia Burnside, Chief Information Officer                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion on the first reading of an 
ordinance granting a non-exclusive medical waste hauling franchise agreement to Tejas 
Medical Waste. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the ordinance granting a non-
exclusive medical waste hauling franchise to Tejas Medical Waste. 
 
 
Summary:   The proposed franchise agreement allows Tejas Medical Waste to engage in 
the business of collecting, hauling and disposing of treated and untreated medical waste 
from various health care facilities within the city limits.  The disposal of medical waste, a 
State mandated service, was privatized because untreated medical waste cannot be 
deposited in the BVSWMA landfill and staff has determined that privatizing this service is the 
most cost-effective way to offer this service to our community. 
 
Tejas Medical Waste had a franchise with the City for a term of two years beginning August 
2004 and has paid all franchise fees and provided all reports to the City as required.  
 
Other companies having similar non-exclusive medial waste hauling franchise agreements 
with the City are Enviromed, Stericycle, Inc. and American Medical Waste Management, Inc. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   The franchise agreement requires Tejas Medical Waste to 
pay five percent (5%) of the company's gross delivery and hauling revenues generated from 
the company's business of collecting and disposing of treated and untreated medical waste 
within the City. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Franchise Ordinance 
 
 

161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



 

 

November 20, 2006 
Consent Agenda  

Ratification of Historic Preservation Committee Rules of Procedure 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Olivia Burnside, Chief Information Officer                    
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the ratification 
of the Historic Preservation Committee’s Rules of Procedure. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Historic Preservation Committee and staff recommend 
ratification of the attached Historic Preservation Committee Rules of Procedure. 
 
 
Summary:  
 
Chapter 1, Section 23: E of the City of College Station Code of Ordinances authorizes the 
Historic Preservation Committee to establish its own rules, regulations, and bylaws subject 
to ratification by the City Council. 
 
This is the initial creation of the Historic Preservation Committee Rules of Procedures.   
Adoption of the Rules of Procedure was initiated by the Historic Preservation Committee. 
 
The Historic Preservation Committee approved the Rules of Procedure on November 6, 
2006. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
 
Attachments:   
Historic Preservation Committee Rules of Procedure 
 
Historic Preservation Committee draft Minutes of November 6, 2006 
 
 
 

184



185



186



187



188



Draft 
Minutes 

Historic Preservation Committee 
Monday, November 6, 2006 

4:00 p.m. 
2nd Floor Conference Room 

City of College Station, City Hall, 1101 Texas Avenue 
College Station, TX 77840 

 
 
Attendance: 
Chair Hillary Jessup, Marguerite Anthony, Jane Hughey, Neal Nutall, Colleen Risinger, 
Meredith Waller, and Ernie Wright. 
 
Approved Absence: Haskell Monroe. 
 
Absent: Bill Lancaster. 
 
Staff Attendance: Chief Information Officer Olivia Burnside and Neighborhood 
Services Coordinator Katie Elrod. 
 
Agenda Item #1: Call to Order. 
Meeting was called to order at 4:15 p.m. 
 
Agenda Item #2: Absence Request. 
 
Marguerite Anthony moved to accept absence request for Haskell Monroe.  The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item #3: Initial Hear Visitors. 
No visitors were present. 
 
Agenda Item #4: Newly Appointed Members. 
New members, Jane Hughey and Meredith Waller, were welcomed.  Introductions were 
made all around. 
 
Agenda Item #5: Approval of minutes. 
 
Colleen Risinger made the motion to accept the minutes for the meeting of October 3, 
2006.   The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item #6: RFQ for Historic District Consultant 
Olivia Burnside highlighted the pertinent sections of the Request for Qualifications for 
the historic district consultant. 

189



 
Ernie Wright asked for clarification on scope of work.  Olivia Burnside reported the 
following: 1.) Survey and inventory, 2.) Classification of significance of properties, 3.) 
District boundaries and design component suggestion, and 4.) a sample Historic District 
Enabling Ordinance. 
 
Olivia Burnside requested that comments be submitted to staff Katie Elrod within the 
week. 
 
Neal Nutall made the motion to accept the Request for Qualifications as written, with the 
stipulation that further from committee member may still be submitted to staff within the 
week.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item #7: Committee Retreat 
 
Jane Hughey moved to hold the Historic Preservation Committee retreat on Monday, 
December 11th at residence of Chair Hillary Jessup, 115 Lee Street at 9 a.m. The motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item #8: East Texas Historical Association Meeting. 
 
It was discussed that the speaker should cover a regional topic that applies to our region. 
 
Ernie Wright made the motion to host the East Texas Historical Association at the 
January 17th Exploring History Lunch Lecture.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item #9: Committee Rules of Procedure. 
 
Marguerite Anthony made the motion to accept the Historic Preservation Committee 
Rules of Procedure.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Marguerite Anthony made the motion forward the Historic Preservation Committee Rules 
of Procedure to City Council for ratification.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
Agenda Item #10: Open Meetings Training. 
Discussion took place regarding those in need of taking Open Meeting Act Training. 
 
Agenda Item #11: Exploring History Lunch Lecture. 
Staff report included in the packet detailed next year’s speakers. 
 
Agenda Item #12: Project HOLD 
Staff report included in the packet detailed progress. 
 
Agenda Item #13: Calendar of Events 
Chair Hillary Jessup gave an update on the Municipal Cemetery and the Aggie Field of 
Honor design project.   

190



 
 
Agenda Item #14: Hear Visitors 
There were no visitors present. 
 
Agenda Item #15: Future Agenda Items. 
Marguerite Anthony asked that May Heritage Month to be discussed at retreat.  Chair 
Hillary Jessup said that she would work with staff regarding the agenda for the planning 
retreat. 
 
Agenda Item #16:  
Meeting adjourned at 5:20 p.m. 
 
 
 
APPROVED:     ATTEST: 
 
_____________________________  ________________________________ 
Hillary Jessup, Chair     Katie Elrod, Neighborhood Services 
Coordinator 
 

191



November 20, 2006 
Consent Agenda 

Amendment to Azteca Systems, Inc. Update and Support Agreement 
 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Olivia Burnside, Chief Information Officer 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval 
of an amendment to the Update and Support Agreement with Azteca Systems, Inc. 
approved by Council on December 9, 1999 which amends the covered products. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval. 
 
Summary: This software is a work order management system being implemented in 
Public Works.  Previously, the Water & Wastewater Department used the software.  
This amendment simply redefines the covered licensed programs from being module 
based licensing, whereby the licenses were defined for Water and Wastewater use, to 
“named” licenses of the product, whereby their intended use is up to the City of 
College Station.  The amendment also restates the maintenance fees of $7,545.00 
per year. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Funds for this maintenance are included in the 
Information Services Department's operating budget.  
 
Attachments: 
 
Amendment to Update and Support Agreement with Azteca Systems, Inc. 
 
Original Update and Support Agreement with Azteca Systems, Inc. 

192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



203



204



205



206



November 20, 2006 
Regular Agenda 

Bird Pond Road Rezoning 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
ordinance rezoning approximately 94 acres, located on the south side of Bird Pond Road 
north-east of Rock Prairie Road, from A-O (Agricultural Open) to A-OR (Rural Residential). 
  
Recommendation(s): The Planning & Zoning Commission unanimously recommended 
approval of the rezoning at their regular meeting on 2 November 2006, with the request 
that the City Council consider safety improvements to Bird Pond Road as soon as possible. 
Staff also recommends approval. 
 
Summary: The applicant is requesting the subject property be rezoned from A-O 
(Agricultural Open) to A-OR (Rural Residential) for the development of a rural residential 
subdivision with a minimum lot size of one acre.  
 
During the public hearing at the Planning & Zoning Commission, citizens expressed concerns 
about the condition of Bird Pond Road.  Therefore, the Commission is forwarding a request 
to consider improving Bird Pond Road as soon as possible. It is not the Commission’s intent 
that the improvement of the Rock Prairie Road be viewed as a condition of the rezoning 
approval.  
 
The Comprehensive Plan shows this area as Single-Family Low Density, which allows 1/3 to 
2 dwelling units per acre. The subject property is currently zoned A-O (Agricultural Open). 
There is a small portion of Flood Plain & Streams located on this property which will remain 
A-O (Agricultural Open). The rezoning request to A-OR (Rural Residential) is in compliance 
with the City's Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Small Area Map & Aerial Map 
2. Infrastructure and Facilities 
3. Ordinance  

 
 

207



208



 

209



INFRASTRUCTURE AND FACILITIES 
 
Water: The subject property is located in Wellborn CCN.  The applicant has gained 
permission from Wellborn water and the City of College Station to provide this 
property with Wellborn domestic water and City of College Station water supply for 
fire protection purposes.   
 
Sewer: The subject property will be using on site sewer treatment systems, which 
will be permitted through the Brazos County Health Department. 
 
Streets: The subject property is located adjacent to Bird Pond Road, which is 
classified as a Minor Arterial on the City's Thoroughfare Plan 
 
Off-site Easements: The subject property will need off-site easements for the 
extension of public water.  Other off-site easements may be required but have not 
been identified at this time. 
 
Drainage: The subject property is located in the Carter’s Creek Drainage Basin. 
 
Flood Plain: None 
 
Oversize request: None known at this time 
 
Impact Fees: N/A 
 

210



211



212



213



214



215



216



217



218



219



November 20, 2006 
Regular Agenda 

Winestyles Wine & Gifts Conditional Use Permit 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and consideration of an 
ordinance authorizing a Conditional Use Permit for Winestyles Wine & Gifts located at 1741 
University Drive East.       
 
Recommendation(s):  The Planning & Zoning Commission voted unanimously to 
recommended approval of the Condition Use Permit at their regular meeting on 2 November 
2006 with the condition that landscaping or a structural barrier be placed between the 
outdoor seating area and the parking lot.  Staff also recommends approval. 
 
 
Summary:  The applicant is requesting a Conditional Use Permit for a 2,130 square foot 
wine boutique located in the Gateway Retail Center on University Drive East.  The subject 
lease space is one of three in a 7,663 square foot retail building located between Home 
Depot and Cheddars restaurant.  The other tenants are T.C. Homes Design Studio and 
LazrSmooth, a medical clinic.  The proposed hours of operation are 11:00 a.m. to 9:00 
p.m., Monday through Saturday, and 12:00 p.m. to 5:00 p.m. on Sunday. 
 
The applicant is seeking to sell wine by the glass for on-premise consumption and provide 
occasional entertainment for which a Conditional Use Permit is required to classify the 
establishment as a night club.   
 
The Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission regulates the sales of alcoholic beverages and 
prohibits sales within 300’ of a church, public or private school, or public hospital.  All such 
uses are beyond the 300’ boundary. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Small Area Map (SAM) & Aerial Map 
2. Item Background and Staff Analysis 
3. Ordinance 

220



221



 

222



Item Background & Staff Analysis 
 
Item Background:  The subject property was annexed into the City of College Station on 
August 27, 1958.  The property was rezoned from C-1 General Commercial to C-B Business 
Commercial on November 20, 1991.  With the adoption of the UDO in 2003, the C-B district 
was combined with C-1.  The Corridor Overlay District was adopted on January 9, 1992.  
The subject property is currently platted.  There have been no recent actions on the 
property, though Comprehensive Plan Amendments and rezoning requests have been 
submitted on property to the north of Home Depot.  Other activities in the vicinity include 
the submittal and/or development of:  PetSmart, Linens-n-Things, Circuit City, Posados, and 
Fish Daddy’s. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Considerations: The Land Use Plan designates this area as 
Regional Retail.  University Drive is a major arterial and Glenhaven Drive is a minor collector 
on the City’s Thoroughfare Plan.  The property is zoned C-1, General Commercial, 
surrounded by other C-1 commercial parcels on all sides, and located in the Corridor 
Overlay District. 
 
Staff Analysis: Section 3.13 of the Unified Development Ordinance authorizes the 
existence of conditional uses.  The Planning and Zoning Commission may recommend to the 
City Council to approve an application for a conditional use permit where it reasonably 
determines that there will be no significant negative impact upon residents of surrounding 
property or upon the general public. 
 
The City Council may permit a conditional use subject to appropriate conditions and 
safeguards, when after public notice and hearing the Council finds that:  (Staff comments 
are in italics) 
 
1. Purpose and Intent of UDO.  Staff conducted a technical review and found general 

compliance with development regulations. 

2. Consistency with Comprehensive Plan.  The request is in compliance with the 
Comprehensive Plan. 

3. Compatibility with Surrounding Area.  The public hearing is an opportunity for the 
Commission to measure the potential impact on surrounding land uses. 

4. Harmonious with Character of Surrounding Area.  The use is located in a retail center 
lease space which has an approved site plan that meets minimum requirements. 

5. Infrastructure Impacts Minimized.  The proposed use will not negatively impact 
infrastructure more than other permitted uses. 

6. Effect of Environment.  The proposed use is consistent with the restaurant and other 
commercial uses in the vicinity. 

The City Council may impose additional reasonable restrictions or conditions to carry out the 
spirit and intent of the Unified Development Ordinance and to mitigate adverse effects of 
the proposed use. These requirements may include, but are not limited to, increased open 
space, loading and parking requirements, additional landscaping, and additional 
improvements such as curbing, sidewalks and screening. 
 

223



224



225



November 20, 2006 
Regular Agenda 

Harvey Mitchell Parkway South Rezoning 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption:  Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
ordinance rezoning approximately 44 acres, located at 1300 Harvey Mitchell Parkway South, 
from A-O (Agricultural Open) and R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to a combination of A-O 
(Agricultural Open) and R-4 (Multi-Family). 
 
 
Recommendation(s): The Planning & Zoning Commission unanimously recommended 
approval of the request at their regular meeting on 2 November 2006. Staff also 
recommends approval of the rezoning. 
 
 
Summary: This item is for consideration of a rezoning request for a vacant tract of land on 
the south side of Harvey Mitchell Parkway between Holleman Drive West and Luther Street 
West.  The applicant is pursuing this request in order to develop the site as a student-
oriented multi-family development.  This proposal includes rezoning approximately 23.8 
acres of R-1 (Single-Family Residential) and 20.2 acres of A-O (Agricultural Open)  to 
approximately 27.7 acres of R-4 (Multi-Family) and 15.9 acres of A-O (Agricultural Open).  
There is a considerable amount of floodplain on the property that will be depicted as A-O 
(Agricultural Open).  The development will not impact the floodplain but rather integrate it 
as a part of the development as a recreational amenity.  
 
On 13 July of this year, the Council amended the Land Use Plan for this area from Industrial 
R&D to Residential Attached.  Therefore, the rezoning request is in compliance with the 
Comprehensive Plan.  
 
This section of Harvey Mitchell Parkway South is scheduled to have a traffic signal installed 
at the future Holleman Drive intersection.  Staff will work with the applicant to establish a 
secondary connection from this property to the future Hollleman Drive intersection which 
will provide an additional entrance from Holleman and decrease the amount of traffic 
accessing the site from Harvey Mitchell Parkway South. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: None. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Small Area Map and Aerial  
2. Item Background 
3. Ordinance 

 

226



227



 

228



Item Background: The front portion of this property was annexed in 1970 
and subsequently zoned R-1 (Single-Family Residential).  The remainder was 
annexed in 2002 and zoned A-O (Agricultural Open).  The property is 
currently unplatted. 
 
The subject property is bounded by land designated as Industrial Research & 
Development to the north and south, and Texas A&M University property to 
the west.  These tracts of land are largely undeveloped and also contain large 
amounts of floodplain. 
 
Comprehensive Plan Considerations: The Land Use portion of the 
Comprehensive Plan was recently amended by the City Council on June 15, 
2006 from Industrial Research & Development to Residential Attached, while 
maintaining the Floodplain and Streams land use designation.  The rezoning 
request is in compliance with the amended Comprehensive Plan.  The 
Thoroughfare Plan reflects Harvey Mitchell Parkway as a Freeway.   
 

229



230



231



232



233



234



235



236



237



238



239



240



241



242



243



244



245



246



November 20, 2006 
Regular Agenda 

Special Provisions for Floodways Ordinance 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Pubic Works 
 
Agenda Caption:  Public hearing, presentation, possible action and discussion of an 
ordinance amending City of College Station Code of Ordinances Chapter 13:  Flood Hazard 
Protection, Section 5G:  Special Provisions for Floodways.  
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of this ordinance amendment. 
 
Summary:  This ordinance proposes to amend City of College Station Code of Ordinances 
Chapter 13:  Flood Hazard Protection, Section 5G:  Special Provisions for Floodways by 
adding the entirety of language in (2)d.   
 
All encroachments into the floodway currently require a variance in accordance with Section 
6:  Variances of Chapter 13:  Flood Hazard Protection.  This requirement is more stringent 
than the FEMA rules.  The amendment is consistent with the FEMA rules.  This amendment 
would provide an exemption for proposed public street and public utility improvements to 
encroach into the floodway without a variance.  The exemption applies to public streets and 
utilities proposed by the City and private developers.  All encroachments, including street 
and public utility improvements, would continue to be required to provide a complete 
engineering report fully demonstrating that the encroachments would not result in any 
increase in water surface elevation.  There is no cost associated with this ordinance 
amendment. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  N/A 
 
Attachments: 

1. Ordinance 
 

247



ORDINANCE NO. ______________ 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 13, “FLOOD HAZARD PROTECTION,” 
SECTION 5, “SPECIAL PROVISIONS” OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY AMENDING CERTAIN SECTIONS AS 
SET OUT BELOW; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; DECLARING A 
PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 13, “Flood Hazard Protection,” Section 5, “Special 

Provisions”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station, 
Texas, be amended as set out in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and made a 
part of this ordinance for all purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be 

void or unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way effect the validity of 
the remaining provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain 
in full force and effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of 

this chapter shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor, and upon conviction 
thereof shall be punishable by a fine of not less than Twenty-five Dollars 
($25.00) nor more than Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00).  Each day 
such violation shall continue or be permitted to continue, shall be deemed 
a separate offense.  Said Ordinance, being a penal ordinance, becomes 
effective ten (10) days after its date of passage by the City Council, as 
provided by Section 35 of the Charter of the City of College Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this _______ day of __________________, 

2006. 
    APPROVED: 

 
        
_______________________________ 

  RON SILVIA, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
_______________________________________ 
City Attorney 

248



EXHIBIT “A” 
  
 

That Chapter 13, “Flood Hazard Protection,” Section 5 “Special Provisions” Subsection 
G, “Special Provisions for Floodways,” of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College 
Station, Texas, is hereby amended by adding (d) to paragraph (2) to read as follows: 
 

 
(d) Proposed street and public utility encroachments shall be exempt from 

the requirement of a variance provided that the proposal is accompanied 
by a complete engineering report fully demonstrating that the 
encroachments shall not result in any increase in water surface elevation 
or flood hazard upstream, within, or downstream of the encroachment 
location.  The engineering report shall conform to the requirements of the 
Drainage Policy and Design Standards and shall bear the dated seal and 
signature of a registered professional engineer; 

 
 

249



 

November 20, 2006 
Regular Agenda Item 

Senior and Disabled Tax Ceiling 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion on the tax ceiling for seniors 
and the disabled. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends Council provide direction on the tax ceiling for 
seniors and the disabled.   
 
Summary:  In 2003, a change to the State of Texas Tax Code was enacted that allows a 
ceiling to be placed on the property taxes paid by senior and disabled citizens. The code was 
amended with three methods by which the senior and disabled tax ceiling can be enacted  
 

1. The governing body of the taxing unit can vote to enact the tax ceiling. 
2. The governing body of the taxing unit can vote to place the tax ceiling issue on the 

ballot of an upcoming uniform election. 
3. Citizens within the taxing unit can file a petition signed by 5% of the registered 

voters in the jurisdiction and have the tax ceiling issue placed on the ballot of an 
upcoming election. 

 
If Council chooses to set 2006 as the base year for calculating the tax ceiling, an item can 
be placed on the December 14, 2006 agenda to enact the senior and disabled tax ceiling. 
 
Staff can prepare a resolution, on which Council must vote, to include the senior and 
disabled tax ceiling issue on the ballot of an upcoming uniform election. The next uniform 
election is May 12, 2007.  
 
A citizen petition to include the senior and disabled tax ceiling issue on an upcoming uniform 
election could be received. To include the tax ceiling issue on the May 12, 2007 ballot, the 
petition must be received and verified by the City Secretary no later than February 15, 
2007. If these criteria are not met, the next uniform election on which the senior and 
disabled tax ceiling could be voted would be November 6, 2007. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  Staff has completed a ten year estimate on the impact of 
enacting a tax ceiling for seniors and the disabled. The revenues that would be lost to the 
tax ceiling over a ten year period are estimated to be $3.2 million ($1.4 million for 
Operations and Maintenance and $1.8 million for Debt Service). The cumulative average 
amount lost to the tax ceiling each year would be $317,000 ($138,000 for Operations and 
Maintenance and $179,000 for Debt Service). These estimates assume that there are no 
major changes in the number of citizens who currently claim a senior or disabled exemption.  
If the senior and disabled tax ceiling were enacted and an individuals tax bill was $500; the 
taxes paid on the home would not exceed the $500 unless substantial improvements were 
made to the property regardless of how much the property may increase in value. 
 
Attachments: 
Senior Tax Ceiling Information 
Ten Year forecast of Ad Valorem Revenues 
 

250



Senior Tax Ceiling Information 
House Bill 136 allows the City to put a ceiling on the tax bill of the primary residence of elderly 
and disabled persons. The law provides that property taxes will not go up for that residence once 
a homeowner is registered as over 65 years of age or as disabled. Property improvements, other 
than general maintenance, can increase the amount of the tax bill. 

Enacting a property tax ceiling for the seniors and the disabled 
1. The tax ceiling can be enacted by ordinance, without a petition or special election. 

2. Voters can petition for an election to adopt the tax ceiling with the signatures of five percent 
of the registered voters in the City. 

The tax ceiling is at the option of City Council, except if an election is required by a voter petition 
(TEX. CONST. art. VIII, § 1-b (h)). 

Special Notes: 

- Once the property tax ceiling is adopted it cannot be revoked. 

- Governor Rick Perry issued an Executive Order RP60 on August 21, 2006 to establish a 
Texas Task Force on Appraisal Reform to review property appraisal caps. The Task 
Force will submit a full report and recommendations to the governor prior to convening 
of the 80th Texas Legislature on January 9, 2007. Implementation of property appraisal 
cap legislation by the 80th Texas Legislature could impact the ability of local 
governments to generate revenues to fund public services. 

When a senior tax ceiling would go in effect if adopted by Council 
The calendar year in which the property tax ceiling is adopted by the City becomes the “base” 
year. The total tax bill of an eligible homeowner cannot increase beyond the amount they paid in 
the base year after the ceiling is adopted, except for the two conditions listed below:  

1. There are improvements to the property beyond normal maintenance and upkeep, said 
improvements will be subject to subsequent tax increases; or 

2. The property erroneously received an exemption to which it was not entitled in a prior year. 

The benefit of the tax ceiling for eligible homeowners does not accrue until the tax year after the 
calendar year in which the ceiling is enacted (i.e. if adopted in 2006, the baseline (ceiling), will be 
the 2006 tax levy, which will be assessed in 2007 and future years.) 

Existing homestead exemption and the tax ceiling 
The City of College Station currently has a $30,000 homestead exemptions for senior citizens. If 
the city adopted a tax ceiling, the amount of taxes paid on the homestead, reduced by the 
homestead exemption amount, would remain the baseline amount even if the optional homestead 
exemption were cancelled or reduced in the future. 

Transferability/Portability 
Transferability by Jurisdiction (transfer from city to city): the tax ceiling is not transferable 
from city to city.  

251



Transferability to Surviving Spouse: the tax ceiling is transferable to a surviving spouse who is 
disabled or at least 55 years of age. 

Portability (transfer from home to home): the tax ceiling transfers to a new home purchased 
within the same jurisdiction, but the taxes owed would increase if the value of the new homestead 
is greater than the old homestead. The new taxable value would increase based on a ratio between 
the relative value of the old and new homesteads. Id. at 11.261g. (See exhibit#1 for example) 

Current Optional Exemptions for City Residents: 
The following exemptions are set for the disabled and individuals over 65 years of age: 

- $75,000 exemption from Brazos County, as well as a tax ceiling 

- $30,000 exemption from CSISD  

- $30,000 exemption from City of College Station 

Options for Council to Consider: 
Option 1:  Continue with the city’s $30,000 senior and disabled exemption without 

implementing the senior and disabled tax ceiling. 

Option 2:  Adopt the tax ceiling for a specific year (current year or next year) recognizing the 
revenue loss will increase with each additional year.  

Option 3:  Adopt a resolution to put on the next scheduled uniform election ballot (May 12 or 
November 6). 

Option 4:  Wait for petition and put on the next scheduled uniform election ballot. 

252



Exhibit 1 
Portability Example 
For city property tax purposes, persons who qualify for an over 65 exemption or a disabled 
person exemption on their homestead currently establish a “ceiling” on their tax amount when 
they apply and qualify for the exemption. The current City of College Station exemption for 
citizens over 65 is $30,000 per homestead. 

 Tax Ceiling Year  Final Year at Homestead 

Homestead Value  $160,000   $173,000 

Over/65 Exemption  -$  30,000   -$  30,000 

Taxable Value  $ 130,000   $143,000 

Tax Ceiling amount .4394/$100 valuation = $1,300*.4394 = $571 (tax ceiling amount) 

Tax amount without enacting a tax ceiling = $1,430*.4394 = $628 tax amount 

As long as the homeowner continues to qualify for the exemption, their tax bill amount will not 
exceed $571. The appraised value of the home can increase, and the tax rate can increase, but the 
actual tax bill paid will not exceed $571 (unless substantial homestead improvements are made). 

Transferring the homeowner’s tax ceiling to a different home gives the same tax benefit to the 
homeowner, but not the same tax ceiling. A tax ceiling on a new home would be calculated to 
give the homeowner the same percentage of taxes paid as the original home’s tax ceiling. 

For example, a qualified homeowner had a city tax ceiling of $571, but would pay $628 without a 
city tax ceiling on the homestead. The percentage paid by the homeowner was 91% ($571 divided 
by $628, times 100). If the homeowner moved to a new home in that city, the owner will pay 91% 
of the city tax bill on the new home. If the new home’s city taxes were $1,000, then the owner 
would have a tax ceiling of $910 ($1,000 times 91%). 

253



252,688,454       Senior Taxable Value
3,802,482,092    All Other Taxable Value
4,055,170,546 Taxable value (all property)

FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17
General Fund O&M Rate 0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                0.1910                
Debt Service Rate 0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                0.2484                
Total Rate 0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                0.4394                

Ad Valorem Collections with Senior Ceiling
FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17

Growth Factor 6% 5% 5% 4% 4% 4% 4% 3% 3% 3%
Senior Value 252,688,454       267,849,761       281,242,249       295,304,362       307,116,536       319,401,198       332,177,246       345,464,335       355,828,265       366,503,113       377,498,207       
All Other 3,802,482,092    4,030,631,018    4,232,162,568    4,443,770,697    4,621,521,525    4,806,382,386    4,998,637,681    5,198,583,188    5,354,540,684    5,515,176,905    5,680,632,212    

Total Taxable Value 3,802,482,092    4,030,631,018    4,232,162,568    4,443,770,697    4,621,521,525    4,806,382,386    4,998,637,681    5,198,583,188    5,354,540,684    5,515,176,905    5,680,632,212    

Senior Taxes
O&M Taxes 482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              482,635              
Debt Service 627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              627,678              

Senior Taxes 1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           1,110,313           

All Other
O&M Taxes 7,262,741           7,698,505           8,083,431           8,487,602           8,827,106           9,180,190           9,547,398           9,929,294           10,227,173         10,533,988         10,850,008         
Debt Service 9,445,366           10,012,087         10,512,692         11,038,326         11,479,859         11,939,054         12,416,616         12,913,281         13,300,679         13,699,699         14,110,690         

All Other 16,708,106         17,710,593         18,596,122         19,525,928         20,306,966         21,119,244         21,964,014         22,842,575         23,527,852         24,233,687         24,960,698         

Total Taxes (senior ceiling enacted) 17,818,419$       18,820,906$       19,706,435$       20,636,242$       21,417,279$       22,229,557$       23,074,327$       23,952,888$       24,638,165$       25,344,000$       26,071,011$       

Ad Valorem Collections with No Senior Ceiling
FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17

Growth Factor 6% 5% 5% 4% 4% 4% 4% 3% 3% 3%
Senior Value 252,688,454       267,849,761       281,242,249       295,304,362       307,116,536       319,401,198       332,177,246       345,464,335       355,828,265       366,503,113       377,498,207       
All Other 3,802,482,092    4,030,631,018    4,232,162,568    4,443,770,697    4,621,521,525    4,806,382,386    4,998,637,681    5,198,583,188    5,354,540,684    5,515,176,905    5,680,632,212    

Total Taxable Value 3,802,482,092    4,030,631,018    4,232,162,568    4,443,770,697    4,621,521,525    4,806,382,386    4,998,637,681    5,198,583,188    5,354,540,684    5,515,176,905    5,680,632,212    

Senior Taxes
O&M Taxes 482,635              511,593              537,173              564,031              586,593              610,056              634,459              659,837              679,632              700,021              721,022              
Debt Service 627,678              665,339              698,606              733,536              762,877              793,393              825,128              858,133              883,877              910,394              937,706              

Senior Taxes 1,110,313           1,176,932           1,235,778           1,297,567           1,349,470           1,403,449           1,459,587           1,517,970           1,563,509           1,610,415           1,658,727           

All Other
O&M Taxes 7,262,741           7,698,505           8,083,431           8,487,602           8,827,106           9,180,190           9,547,398           9,929,294           10,227,173         10,533,988         10,850,008         
Debt Service 9,445,366           10,012,087         10,512,692         11,038,326         11,479,859         11,939,054         12,416,616         12,913,281         13,300,679         13,699,699         14,110,690         

All Other 16,708,106         17,710,593         18,596,122         19,525,928         20,306,966         21,119,244         21,964,014         22,842,575         23,527,852         24,233,687         24,960,698         

Total Taxes (no senior ceiling) 17,818,419$       18,887,525$       19,831,901$       20,823,496$       21,656,436$       22,522,693$       23,423,601$       24,360,545$       25,091,361$       25,844,102$       26,619,425$       

Average Amt Total Amt Lost
Financial Impact FY07 FY08 FY09 FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15 FY16 FY17 Lost per Year Over 10 years
Estimated O&M Lost to Exemption -                         (28,958)               (54,538)               (81,396)               (103,958)             (127,421)             (151,824)             (177,202)             (196,997)             (217,386)             (238,387)             (137,807)         (1,378,066)        
Estimated Debt Service Lost to Exemption -                         (37,661)               (70,928)               (105,858)             (135,199)             (165,714)             (197,450)             (230,455)             (256,199)             (282,716)             (310,027)             (179,221)         (1,792,208)        

Total Estimated Loss to Exemption -$                       (66,619)$             (125,465)$           (187,254)$           (239,157)$           (293,136)$           (349,274)$           (407,657)$           (453,196)$           (500,102)$           (548,414)$           (317,027)$       (3,487,302)$      

254



Fiscal 
Year

General 
Fund

Debt 
Service Total % Change

FY08 (28,958)$        (37,661)$        (66,619)$        
FY09 (54,538)          (70,928)          (125,465)        88%
FY10 (81,396)          (105,858)        (187,254)        49%
FY11 (103,958)        (135,199)        (239,157)        28%
FY12 (127,421)        (165,714)        (293,136)        23%
FY13 (151,824)        (197,450)        (349,274)        19%
FY14 (177,202)        (230,455)        (407,657)        17%
FY15 (196,997)        (256,199)        (453,196)        11%
FY16 (217,386)        (282,716)        (500,102)        10%
FY17 (238,387)        (310,027)        (548,414)        10%

(1,378,066)$   (1,792,208)$   (3,170,274)$   

255


	Agenda
	Item No. 2 - Senior and Disabled Tax Ceiling
	Coversheet
	Senior Tax Ceiling Information
	Ten Year Forecast

	Item No. 3 - Alternative Revenue Sources
	Coversheet
	Transportation User Fee
	New Fees
	Updated Fees
	PARD Consessions 

	Item No. 4 - Red Light Camera System
	Coversheet
	Red Light Camera Program

	Item No. 5 - Update on Comprehensive Plan Process
	Coversheet
	Focus Group Summary

	Item No. 13.1 - 2006 Gainsharing Distribution
	Coversheet

	Item No. 13.2 - Resolution Establishing a Joint Bryan/College Station Youth Commission
	Coversheet
	Resolution establishing the joint Bryan/College Station Youth Commission

	Item No. 13.3 - The Memorial for all Veterans of the Brazos Valley Budget and Funding Agreement
	Coversheet
	Funding Agreement and Budget

	Item No. 13.4 - Authorize Brazos County Appraisal District Expenditures
	Coversheet

	Item No. 13.5 - Church Avenue Phase II Needs Resolution
	Coversheet
	Needs Resolution
	Exhibits A
	Location Map

	Item No. 13.6 - College Main Sidewalks
	Coversheet
	Needs Resolution
	Exhibit A
	Location Map

	Item No. 13.7 - Spring Creek Substation Construction Bid No. 06-138

	Coversheet
	Resolution
	Bid Tabulation
	Location Map

	Item No. 13.8 - Change Order Electric System Right-of-Way Clearing 
	Coversheet
	Change Order

	Item No. 13.9 - Electric System Right-of-Way Clearing
	Coversheet
	Renewal Letter
	System Tracking Sheet

	Item No. 13.10 - Tejas Medical Waste Hauling Franchise First Reading
	Coversheet
	Franchise Ordinance

	Item No. 13.11 - Ratification of Historic Preservation Committee Rules of Procedure
	Coversheet
	Historic Preservation Committee Rules of Procedure
	Historic Preservation Committee draft Minutes of November 6, 2006

	Item No. 13.12 - Amendment to Azteca Systems, Inc. Update and Support Agreement
	Coversheet
	Amendment to Update and Support Agreement with Azteca Systems, Inc.
	Original Update and Support Agreement with Azteca Systems, Inc.

	Item No. 14.1 - Bird Pond Road Rezoning
	Coversheet
	Small Area Map & Aerial Map
	Infrastructure and Facilities
	Ordinance

	Item No. 14.2 - Winestyles Wine & Gifts Conditional Use Permit
	Coversheet
	Small Area Map (SAM) & Aerial Map
	Item Background and Staff Analysis
	Ordinance

	Item No. 14.3 - Harvey Mitchell Parkway South Rezoning
	Coversheet
	Small Area Map and Aerial 
	Item Background
	Ordinance

	Item No. 14.4 - Special Provisions for Floodways Ordinance
	Coversheet
	Ordinance Amendment

	Item No. 14.5 - Senior and Disabled Tax Ceiling
	Coversheet
	Senior Tax Ceiling Information
	Ten Year Forecast


